Preliminary Final Report of

LogiCamms Limited

For the Financial Year Ended
30 June 2018
ABN 90 127 897 689

This Preliminary Final Report is provided to the Australian Stock
Exchange (ASX) under ASX Listing Rule 4.3A
Current Reporting Period: Financial Year ending 30 June 2018
Previous Corresponding Period: Financial Year ending 30 June 2017

Results for announcement to the market
30 June 2018
$’000

30 June 2017
$’000

Change

81,750

81,063

(0.85)%

Loss from ordinary activities after tax attributable to members

(773)

(23,615)

96.73%

Net loss for the year attributable to members

(773)

(23,615)

96.73%

-

-

-

Basic earnings per share (AUD cents per share)

(0.9)

(30.6)

Diluted earnings per share (AUD cents per share)

(0.9)

(30.6)

Revenue from ordinary activities

Earnings per share:

Dividends
No dividend for the year ended 30 June 2018 has been declared.

Total dividend per security
Current year

Previous year

Interim dividend – ordinary securities

-

-

Final dividend - ordinary securities

-

-

30 June 2018
$’000

30 June 2017
$’000

Ordinary securities

-

-

Total

-

-

30 June 2018

30 June 2017

3.3 cents

4.0 cents

Total dividends paid or payable on all securities with respect to the financial year

Net tangible assets per security

Net tangible assets per security

Entities over which control has been gained or lost during the period
There were no changes to entities controlled by the Group during the year.

Details of investment in joint venture
Name of Entity

LogiCamms – Electro80 joint venture

Ownership interest

Contribution to net profit

2018
%

2017
%

2018
$’000

2017
$’000

-

50%

-

(15)

Other information
Except for the matters noted above, all the disclosure requirements pursuant to ASX Listing Rule 4.3A are contained within
LogiCamms Limited’s consolidated Financial Report for the year ended 30 June 2018 which accompanies this Preliminary Final
Report.
This report is based on accounts which have been audited.
_________________________

Peter Watson
Chairman
Dated at Brisbane, Queensland this 31st day of August 2018
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LogiCamms
Directors' report
For the year ended 30 June 2018

Your Directors present their report on LogiCamms Limited ("the Company" or "LogiCamms") and its controlled entities ("the
Group") for the financial year ended 30 June 2018.

Principal activities
LogiCamms is a provider of professional engineering and consulting services. LogiCamms’ core service offerings include
electrical and instrumentation, network controls, software solutions, facilities engineering, asset performance, training services
and environmental consulting.
LogiCamms works with owners and operators of hydrocarbons, minerals and metals, manufacturing, defense and infrastructure
assets to enhance productivity and efficiency through innovative technical solutions and improved performance, increasing the
value of customers’ operations.
These services are provided across Australia, New Zealand and Papua New Guinea through office locations in Brisbane, Perth,
Adelaide, Melbourne and New Plymouth, as well as through regional offices in Mackay and Whyalla.

Operating and Financial Review
(a) Financial Performance Overview
A summary of the Group’s operating results for the year ended 30 June 2018 is below:
2018
$'000

2017
$'000

81,750

81,063

Loss before tax

(255)

(21,865)

Income tax expense

(518)

(1,750)

Loss for the year attributable to equity holders in the Company

(773)

(23,615)

Notes
Revenue

Basic earnings per share (cents per share AUD)

4(f)

(0.9)

(30.6)

Diluted earnings per share (cents per share AUD)

4(f)

(0.9)

(30.6)

The Group’s financial results in 2018 across key metrics are as follows:

•

On a continuing business basis, revenue increased from $74.4 million to $81.8 million (up 10%) when Hunter Valley and
Petromod are excluded from 2017 revenue.

•

Loss before tax reduced to $0.3m (down from a loss of $21.9 million in 2017)

•

Loss after tax reduced to $0.8 million (down from a loss of $23.6 million in 2017)

•

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation and impairment (EBITDAI) 1 was a profit of $1.84 million (up from
a loss of $8.1 million in 2017). The FY18 EBITDA result includes all costs associated with the resignation of the CEO.

•

EBITDAI as a percentage of revenue was 2.3% (up from (10.0%) in 2017).

The key factors impacting on revenue and earnings compared to the prior corresponding period were:

•

Revenue was slightly higher than 2017 but anticipated growth was impacted by a number of events that affected major clients
of the business, including the impact on Oil Search of the earthquake in PNG in February and the impact of the major
organisational restructure conducted by Origin Energy in the second half of the financial year. Although a substantial volume
of anticipated work was deferred or cancelled as a result of these events, the strategic decision was made to retain the
resources within the business that were previously servicing these clients in anticipation of a return to normal levels of activity
within a relatively short timeframe. This period was longer than expected, but we are now beginning to see these clients
returning to the market.

1

The reference to EBITDAI is unaudited and is intended to provide a measure of financial performance before the impact of non-cash
items such as depreciation and amortisation, as well as interest income and expenses. EBITDA references in this Directors Report
include profit from equity accounted investments.
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Directors' report
For the year ended 30 June 2018
(continued)

(a) Financial Performance Overview (continued)

•

There was also a change in work mix experienced during the year with LogiCamms winning a higher proportion of lowermargin, fixed-price EPC projects in the Infrastructure sector versus higher margin reimbursable pure engineering consulting
projects.

•

The Group won over $90.0 million of new work during FY18

•

The organisational restructures which were completed during the 2017 reporting period reduced overhead expenditure
substantially in 2018.

•

No impairment of goodwill (2017: $11.0 million).

Throughout 2018, competitive pressures continued across the Company’s range of services and industries in which it operates,
particularly in the hydrocarbons and minerals and metals sectors. The market for infrastructure continues to grow and although
competitive, the Company increased the value and proportion of its revenue attributable to the infrastructure sector, particularly
water infrastructure. A number of larger EPC projects were won during the year with clients including SA Water, SEQ Water and
Water Corporation (WA).
The Group progressed the further development of its proprietary Automated Infrastructure Design Engine (“AIDE”) with a Tier 1
CSG Company and carried out a review of the market potential of AIDE and commercialisation options. Several other clients are
currently evaluating or are in the proof of concept phase with the AIDE product. LogiCamms also implemented its internal
innovation commercialisation and collaboration platform – Liitespace. This platform supports innovation at LogiCamms with a
pipeline of ideas that can be channeled through the development process.
During the 2018 financial year, the Company delivered revenue of $81.8 million, compared to $81.1 million in 2017 ($74.4 million
when Hunter Valley and Petromod revenues are excluded). Our key focus for cost efficiencies was to reduce our overhead costs
in areas that do not impact our ability to improve revenue performance. The Company achieved annualised labour cost savings
of $8.8 million from the two restructures undertaken in 2017. These savings directly contributed to the increase in EBITDA
profitability in FY18.
Closing the low-margin Hunter Valley and Petromod businesses on 31 July 2017 freed up over $1.5 million of working capital. A
full review of corporate overheads was also conducted, with further savings of $1.7 million identified across IT and
communications, premises costs and other general and administrative expenses.
Performance Across Markets
The Company operates in three key markets, being hydrocarbons, minerals and metals and infrastructure. Hydrocarbons again
was responsible for most of the work at 43% of revenue although this was down from 57% the previous year, reflecting the
impact of negative events on our two largest Hydrocarbons clients.
However, steady growth was achieved through the Company’s continued expansion of its services into the infrastructure sector.
Notably, a significant volume of work was carried out for water utilities, including SEQ Water, SA Water and Watercorp, in agribusiness for Viterra and transport with the Northconnex tunnel project. Infrastructure now accounts for 28% of revenue, up from
16% in the 2017 financial year and is expected to continue to grow in the 2019 financial year.
Minerals and Metals revenue remained comparably steady. Greater than 50% of the revenue in this sector has come from work
carried out for West Australian iron ore producers such as Rio Tinto, Roy Hill, Fortescue Metals and BHP. The Group has had
success with its E&I EPC and Maintenance offerings
The Company’s work in international markets was focused primarily around its operations in New Zealand, as well as with Oil
Search in Papua New Guinea. Ad-hoc projects were conducted in other parts of South-East Asia, predominately through
Competency Training, our wholly owned Registered Training Organisation.
(b) Market Overview and Outlook
The market for services in our established markets continues to be highly competitive but is increasing. Within our markets, there
remain significant opportunities for LogiCamms to apply its focused engineering and asset performance services to enable our
customers to extract more value from existing assets.
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Directors' report
For the year ended 30 June 2018
(continued)

Operating and Financial Review (continued)
(b) Market Overview and Outlook (continued)
The outlook in the hydrocarbons and minerals and metals sectors in Australia and New Zealand has seen marked improvement
in recent months, driven by higher commodity prices, with requests for proposals and specialist capability by clients seeking to
extract productivity improvements and the use of sensors and control automation to improve monitoring of physical plant and
equipment in real-time or using data analytics. Greenfield and brownfield opportunities in its three major operating sectors
continue to be a core focus of the Company in the upcoming financial year. In addition, the Group is seeking to expand its
services to the manufacturing, rail transport and defense industry sectors.
As a result of the restructure process undertaken throughout the 2017 financial year, the Company is well positioned to deliver
cost effective solutions to its customers as market conditions improve and clients are looking to invest in productivity
improvements and sustaining capital and operating expenditure.
The key drivers of future revenue and earnings growth are:

•

Having a focused and strategic approach to pursuing new work in our areas of expertise

•

Building on our pipeline of work from core clients to support the engineering disciplines

•

Building on the extensive portfolio of existing MSA’s to drive opportunities with new and existing clients

•

Leveraging our traditional expertise in control systems integration, automation and electrical installation and commissioning
into the growth sectors of the economy, including defense, manufacturing, rail transport and agri-business, and
geographically into NSW and Victoria

•

Leveraging value adding, higher margin opportunities generated by collaborations and partnerships with asset owners and
other service providers

•

Utilising our end-to-end project capabilities, from asset performance consulting, through engineering, procurement,
commissioning, maintenance and training to generate synergistic opportunities to add value to our client's operations

•

Disciplined and focused approach to resource planning and overhead cost management

(c) Working Capital Management
The group significantly improved its operating cash flows but still recorded a net operating outflow of $1.6 million (2017: outflow
of $9.2 million). The Company has continued to focus strongly on working capital management during the year. Outstanding
debtors balances greater than 30 days have been reduced to less than $0.2 million (1.4%) at 30 June 2018.
(d) Statement of Financial Position
The Company’s total assets decreased to $50.5 million in 2018 (2017: $51.0 million). The end of year cash balance of $4.1
million reduced from $5.0 million in 2017.
The net assets of the Group have reduced to $23.4 million at 30 June 2018 from $24.8 million at 30 June 2017. This decrease is
the result of continued net operating losses.
The Company’s total liabilities increased to $27.1 million (2017: $26.2 million), due to additional borrowings of $1.25 million under
the working capital facility.
At 30 June 2018 the Company has utilised $5.25 million of it’s $7.0 million working capital facility (2017: $4.0 million) and $ 3.8
million of its $4.0 million bank guarantee and bonding facilities (2017: utilised $5.2 million of $12.5 million).

Dividend declared after end of year
No dividends were declared after the balance sheet date.
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For the year ended 30 June 2018
(continued)

(e) Key Strategic Goals
The Company operates various business lines, including core engineering services (comprising design, onsite maintenance,
installation and commissioning services) and specialist businesses, including Asset Performance, a Technology & Innovation
division, Competency Training and Monarc Environmental.
The Company’s key strategic goals include:

•

Strengthen our capability and presence in our core service offering areas

•

Move to establishing leadership in technology change in our E&I and Controls System business lines, and implementing
Industry 4.0 capability

•

Continued development and commercialisation of the Company’s innovative technology products including the Automated
Infrastructure Design Engine (“AIDE”)

•

Increasing revenue and margins by exploring new commercial models including collaborations and partnerships with asset
owners and other service providers

•

Accelerating the commercialisation of products developed by its technology and innovation business, increasing its share of
revenue from value-based services rather than traditional reimbursable-based contracts

•

Becoming an employer of choice in the engineering consulting market by offering staff the right mix of challenging project
work, personal and technical development opportunities, monetary and non-monetary benefits and a safe, social and
inclusive place to work

The Company continues to refine its strategic direction, concentrating on core service lines, value proposition, markets, and
alliance partners to maximise shareholder value through profitable expansion of the business in FY19 and beyond.
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(continued)

Operating and Financial Review (continued)
(f)

Significant Risks

The Company is subject to a number of external, business, financial and operational risks. As LogiCamms is a service provider to
the hydrocarbons, minerals and metals and infrastructure industries, any exposure that those industries have to risk factors will
have some impact on LogiCamms’ business. Although LogiCamms has in place strategies to mitigate the impact of this, such as
industry and service diversification, the volatility and uncertainty from such events may impact the nature and timing of work
under contract.
LogiCamms is also subject to other external risks such as currency exchange movements, changes in demand for key
commodities (including iron ore, oil and gas) and political risk. The majority of LogiCamms’ revenues are based in Australia and
New Zealand and both revenue and associated costs are denominated in Australian and New Zealand dollars, and as such,
foreign currency risks are limited.
As a professional services business, the attraction, retention and investment in our people is critical to the success of the
business. LogiCamms manages the risks associated with a people-based business through investment in training, attraction and
retention strategies.
The Company also faces risks associated with the delivery of projects to its customers. In order to optimise the delivery of
services to customers and to maintain strong customer relationships, the Company has in place a robust risk management and
governance framework that applies to the assessment, tender and delivery of customer projects.
LogiCamms is exposed to financial risks, which are partly inter-dependent on the external and business risks mentioned above.
LogiCamms is exposed to liquidity risk which could arise due to delays in invoicing clients, the receipt of cash from clients, project
cost overruns or failure to follow proper procedures to ensure the recoverability of project costs from clients. The Group is reliant
on the continued support of its financiers to provide both working capital and bank guarantee & contract bond facilities. The
Group has invested in the development of risk and financial management systems and processes to minimise these financial
risks. LogiCamms manages working capital closely to ensure that liquidity is available in the business when required and the
delivery of services within agreed commercial terms.
In relation to the operational risks to the business, LogiCamms has a strong focus on ensuring that work is carried out on terms
that satisfy the Company’s internal policies relevant to appropriate return and risk. LogiCamms has a focus on long-term
sustainable projects and relationships and applies margins to work accordingly.
The Company also has detailed procedures in place to ensure that the Company is staffed efficiently and that its people are
working at a level of business that balances the goal of strong returns with that of ensuring the Company’s people are working in
an environment that encourages sustainable personal development and growth opportunities.
The Company maintains a register of key risks and has in place crisis management and disaster recovery plans.
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(continued)

Information on directors
The Directors in office at any time during or since the end of the year were:
Mr Peter Watson Independent Non-Executive Director and Chairman
Appointed 2 June 2011. Year last re-elected: 2016.
Qualifications

Diploma of Engineering, Civil – Monash University, MIEA, Fellow ATSE, MAICD

Experience

Peter Watson has 30 years of international experience in engineering, construction and services industries. As
former Chief Executive Officer of Global Services Group, Transfield Services (ASX: TSE) from 1999 to 2009
(now known as Broadspectrum), Peter stewarded the company through its listing in 2001 and led its
transformation from a local operator to a global business.
Since 2009 Peter has served on a number of boards including Save the Children Pty Ltd, AssetCo Pty Ltd, Zinfra
Pty Ltd, and Ross River Solar Farm Pty Ltd. Peter is a member of the AICD, Institute of Engineers Australia, and
is a fellow of ATSE.
Peter is a member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and a member of the Audit and Risk
Committee.

Directorships of other listed
companies (current or held
within the last 3 years)

Watpac Limited

Mr Richard Robinson Independent Non-Executive Director
Appointed 26 May 2015. Year last re-elected: 2015. Standing for election as a Director.
Qualifications

B. Engineering (with Honours) – University of NSW, MIEPNG

Experience

Richard Robinson has nearly 40 years’ experience in the Oil & Gas industry in Australia and Papua New Guinea.
Richard’s experience covers project, operations and commercial management in the upstream, downstream and
associated service sectors. Richard held senior roles for more than 10 years at Oil Search Limited, retiring from
his role as Executive General Manager in 2013. He has since held a number of Non-Executive Director and
consulting roles within the oil & gas, engineering and construction sectors.

Directorships of other listed
companies (current or held
within the last 3 years)

Kina Petroleum Limited.

Mr Charles Rottier Independent Non-Executive Director
Appointed 4 September 2017. Year last re-elected: 2017.
Qualifications

B. Engineering (with Honours) – University of Sydney, GAICD, Fellow - IEAust

Experience

Charles is a senior manager with extensive management and project experience in local and international
engineering, construction and maintenance services companies.
He has managed successful businesses with operations in Australia, PNG, Asia, and the Americas. He is Chair
of the Energy Pipelines CRC and Future Fuels CRC (July 2018) and has previously held the roles of CEO of
Austin Engineering Limited and EGM Engineering and Construction at Transfield Services.
Charles is Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee and a member of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee.

Directorships of other listed
companies (current or held
within the last 3 years)

None
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(continued)
Information on directors (continued)
Mr Peter Wall Independent Non-Executive Director
Appointed 8 October 2007. Retired on 25 October 2017.
Experience and
qualifications

Peter has extensive management expertise, including a focus on human resources and corporate governance.
Peter had a long tenure at S. Smith & Son (The Yalumba Wine Company); is a former board member of SA
WorkCover Corporation and Chairman of the South Australian Vocational Employment Education & Training
Board.
Peter is Chair of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit and Risk Committee.

Directorships of other listed
companies (current or held
within the last 3 years)

None

Information of Company Secretary
David Shaw was appointed to the position of Company Secretary in February 2017 and also holds the position of General
Counsel at LogiCamms. David joined LogiCamms in 2012 originally performing the role of Legal Counsel. He holds a Bachelor
of Laws and has a legal and compliance background gained from working in the corporate sector in Australia, including with Mills
Oakley Lawyers and Ebsworth Lawyers.

Meetings of directors
The number of Directors’ meetings (including meetings of committees of Directors) and number of meetings attended by each of
the Directors of the Company during the financial year are:
Nomination and

Director

Audit & Risk

Remuneration

Committee

Committee

Project Committee

Meetings

Meetings

Meetings

Board Meetings
A

B

A

B

A

B

A

B

Peter Watson

22

22

3

4

3

3

NA

NA

Charles Rottier

15

15

2

2

2

2

NA

NA

Richard Robinson

20

22

4

4

2

3

4

4

Peter Wall

9

9

2

2

1

1

NA

NA

A = Number of meetings attended
B = Number of meetings held during the time the Director was a member of the Board or Committee
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(continued)
Remuneration report - audited
The Directors present the LogiCamms 2018 remuneration report, outlining key aspects of our remuneration policy and
framework, and remuneration awarded this year. This Remuneration Report outlines the Key Management Personnel (KMP)
remuneration arrangements of the Group in accordance with the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and its Regulations.
For the purpose of this report KMP of the Group are defined as those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the major activities of the Group, directly or indirectly, including any Director (whether executive or
otherwise).
The report is structured as follows:
a)

Overview of the Company's approach to executive reward

b)

Remuneration governance

c)

Elements of remuneration

d)

Consequences of performance on shareholder wealth

e)

Remuneration expenses for executive KMP

f)

Overview of the Company's service contracts with Executives

g)

Non-executive director arrangements

(a) Overview of the Company’s approach to executive reward
The Board has adopted a remuneration policy that takes into account the current size and nature of the Company’s operations.
Remuneration of KMPs is set at levels to reflect market conditions and encourage the continued services of KMP’s including by
benchmarking KMP remuneration to determine where roles are currently positioned, reviewing base salary, short-term incentives
and long-term incentives.
The Group’s remuneration strategy recognises and rewards performance in a way that is consistent with general practices in the
markets in which the Group operates. The Group’s remuneration philosophy is focused on the following key principles and
approaches:

•

Alignment to sustainable long-term value creation

•

Significant levels of equity ownership support alignment to sustainable long-term value creation

•

Assist the attraction and retention of highly skilled employees

•

Be competitive within the markets in which the Group operates

•

Provide meaningful rewards for true outperformance

•

Simple and transparent remuneration framework

•

Consistent remuneration framework across the organisation

•

Align talent and succession planning for future growth

This report specifically sets out remuneration information for the key people who can directly influence the long term strategic
direction of the Company and have the authority for planning, directing and controlling the affairs of the Group during the financial
year ended 30 June 2018. They include the Chief Executive Officer and other key executives and Non-Executive Directors of the
Company as set out below:
Non-executive and executive Directors (see page 10 for details about each Director)
Name

Position

Peter Watson

Chairman

Peter Wall

Non-executive Director (until his retirement on 25 October 2017)

Richard Robinson

Non-executive Director

Charles Rottier

Non-executive Director (appointed 4 September 2017)

12

LogiCamms
Directors' report
For the year ended 30 June 2018
(continued)
Remuneration report - audited (continued)
(a) Overview of the Company's approach to executive reward (continued)
Other key management personnel
Name

Position

Flora Furness

Chief Executive Officer (resigned effective 6 July 2018)

Dan Drewe

Chief Financial Officer (until 6 July 2018), Interim Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer from 6 July 2018)

Iulius Mincu

Director - Technology, Innovation and Asset Performance (resigned effective 15 May 2018)

Naomi Rule

Chief Operating Officer (from 11 December 2017 until 17 April 2018)

Except as noted, the named persons held their current position for the whole of the financial year and to the date of this report.
(b) Remuneration governance
To determine the remuneration of its KMP the Company has a Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Committee makes
recommendations to the Board in relation to the remuneration of KMP, including the fixed and at-risk components of
remuneration. Based on the information and recommendations provided by the Committee, the Board applies its discretion to
determine remuneration, including any changes to fixed components of KMP remuneration as well as any awards under the STI
and LTI Plans. The Committee assists the Board in establishing human resources and compensation policies and practices
including the specific remuneration (including base pay, incentive payments, bonuses, equity awards, superannuation, retirement
rights, termination payments and services contracts) of the Chief Executive Officer and other KMP. The proceedings of each
Committee meeting are reported directly to the Board. The Chairman of the Committee shall be a Non-Executive Director, with all
other members being members of the Board. The Chief Executive Officer is invited to attend Committee meetings.
The primary objective of LogiCamms’ executive remuneration strategy is creating a framework that supports sustainable growth
over the long term, recognising that this is in the interests of all stakeholders. This framework seeks to reward, retain, and
motivate senior executives in a manner aligned with shareholders.
(c) Elements of remuneration
Remuneration and other terms of employment for the Chief Executive Officer and other executive KMP are formalised in
Executive Service Agreements and incentive plans. The total remuneration packages for these KMP contain:

•

A fixed component - Base salary including superannuation. This is expressed as a specific amount that the executive may
take in a form agreed with the Company and is determined based on market reference, the scope and nature of the
individual’s role, their performance and experience.

•

At-risk components - The Board considers that the financial and operational performance and prospects of the Company are
strongly linked to creating shareholder wealth. Accordingly, the Board has put in place at-risk components to remuneration
based on success in delivering on pre-defined targets. For 2018, at-risk components were in the form of:

•

Short Term Incentive (STI) - payable in cash and ordinary shares. Outcomes based on LogiCamms financial and
operational performance over the 2018 financial period, in addition to individual performance measures; and

•

Long Term Incentives (LTI) - payable through the issue of Performance Rights and/or Performance Options.
These LTI instruments are issued for the purposes of aligning KMP interests with those of shareholders by
rewarding long term sustainable shareholder value creation. LTI outcomes for 2018 were based on strategic
performance measures.
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Remuneration report - audited (continued)
(c) Elements of remuneration (continued)

(i)

Fixed annual remuneration (FR)

The fixed remuneration component of salaries includes a base salary and superannuation. Fixed remuneration may be allocated
at the executive’s discretion to cash, superannuation (subject to legislative minimum), motor vehicles and certain other benefits.
The fixed remuneration component is determined based on the scope and nature of the individual’s role, their performance and
experience.

(ii) Short-term incentives
Under the terms of the STI for 2018, each participant had an annual target STI award based on a percentage of base salary for
the year. Payment of the individual’s target STI was dependent on performance against the key metrics set out in the table
below.
For financial year 2018, KMP had a maximum STI opportunity ranging from 20% to 50% of their fixed remuneration where targets
are met. However, if the threshold performance for a measure is not met, the payment may be reduced.
The STI payment is subject to the participant being employed with the Company at the time the STI is due to be paid.
STI awards are determined after a review of performance against the key performance drivers by the Board at the end of the
financial year.
Award criteria for STI
The award criteria for the STI are based on achievement against the Performance Objectives for the Company for the 2018
financial year. The table below sets out the criteria and performance against those criteria:
FY18 Scorecard

Weight

Metric

Financial - EBITDAI

50%

Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment

Financial - OCAT

30%

Operating Cashflow After Tax

Operational

20%

Health, Safety, Environment and Quality

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee have reviewed the performance of the KMP against the above criteria. Based on
the performance of the Group no STI was awarded for the year ended 30 June 2018.
The award criteria for the 2019 STI are based on achievement against the Performance Objectives for the Company for the 2019
financial year. Awards under the 2019 STI are to be paid in the form of cash and ordinary shares in a combination to be
determined by the Board. The table below sets out the award criteria.
FY19 Scorecard

Weight

Metric

Financial - EBITDAI

50%

Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment

Financial - OCAT

30%

Operating Cashflow After Tax

Operational

20%

Health, Safety, Environment and Quality

The Board has discretion to make a determination on individual performance of a KMP and apply such determination as a
modifier to increase or decrease the STI payable.

(iii) Long-term incentives
For the 2018 financial year, each of the executive KMP listed in (a) above was eligible to participate in the LTI Plan, awards for
which can be made in the form of Performance Rights or Performance Options.
Award criteria for LTI
No LTI award criteria were set and no LTI was awarded for the financial year ended 30 June 2018.
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Remuneration report - audited (continued)
(c) Elements of remuneration (continued)
Proportions of fixed and at-risk remuneration
The table below sets out LogiCamms’ target mix of fixed and at risk (STI & LTI) components for each of the executive KMP for
financial year 2018 as a percentage of total remuneration:
Fixed
Remuneration

STI

LTI

Chief Executive Officer

53%

21%

26%

Dan Drewe

Chief Financial Officer

55%

17%

28%

Iulius Mincu

Director - Technology, Innovation and Asset performance

62.5%

18.75%

18.75%

Naomi Rule

Chief Operating Officer

55%

17%

28%

Name

Title

Flora Furness

(d) Consequences of performance on shareholder wealth
In considering the Group’s performance and benefits for shareholder wealth, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has
had regard to a number of factors including profit (as determined under Australian Accounting Standards), dividends, earnings
per share (EPS), return on equity and the performance of the share price.
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has regard to the following indices in respect of the 2018 financial year and the
previous four financial years.
2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

(773)

(23,615)

(38,139)

8,336

5,006

1,842

(8,133)

(8,409)

12,057

6,724

-

-

2,410

4,884

4,545

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to owners
of the Company ($'000)
1

EBITDAI ($'000)
Dividends payments ($'000)
Basic earnings per share (cents)

(0.9)

(31)

(56)

12

7

Increase/(decrease) in share price ($)

0.02

(0.22)

(0.31)

(0.13)

(0.48)

(3)

(95)

(87)

10

6

Return on equity %
1

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation and impairment (EBITDAI)

EBITDAI is considered one of the key financial performance targets in setting the STI as EBITDAI is a measure of free cash flow
excluding the impact of financing, non-cash accounting adjustments and tax treatments. It is considered to be a measure of the
operating performance of the business that is most influenced by management decisions. EBITDAI amounts for 2014 to 2018
have been calculated by adjusting net profit calculated in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (AASs) and
adding back net finance expenses, tax expense, depreciation, amortisation and impairment charges.
The overall level of executive KMP compensation takes into account these and other factors in assessing the performance of the
Group and executive KMP over a number of years. When comparing financial year 2018 to financial year 2017, although the
Group reversed the trend of EBITDAI losses from the previous two years it did not generate an EBITDAI margin in the mid-single
digits as had been expected and communicated to shareholders in the Company’s guidance to the market in June 2017.
Consequently, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee determined that no STI be awarded under the 2018 STI plan.
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(continued)
Remuneration report - audited (continued)
(e) Remuneration expenses for executive KMP
Details of the nature and amount of each major element of remuneration of each of the Key Management Personnel are:
Variable
remuneration

Fixed remuneration

Name
Non-Executive Directors

Year

Cash
salary

Total

Proportion of
remuneration
performance
related

Peter Watson

2018

$
120,000

$
-

$
-

$
-

$
-

$
120,000

%
-

%
-

2017

140,000

-

-

-

-

140,000

-

-

2018

26,668

-

-

-

-

26,668

-

-

2017

80,000

-

-

-

-

80,000

-

-

2018

75,000

-

-

-

4,245

79,245

-

5.3%

Peter Wall (retired 25 October 2017)
Richard Robinson

Nonmonetary
benefits

Postemployment
benefits

Termination
benefits

Options and
rights

Value of options
and rights as
proportion of
remuneration

2017

75,000

-

-

-

10,421

85,421

-

12.2%

Charles Rottier (appointed 4 September 2017)

2018

54,004

-

5,130

-

-

59,134

-

-

Total Non-Executive Director remuneration

2018

275,672

-

5,130

-

4,245

285,047

2017

295,000

-

-

-

10,421

305,421

2017

398,626

3,900

22,692

90,000

(1,392)

513,826

-

(0.3%)

2018

428,814

7,091

19,172

339,671

78,000

872,748

8.9%

8.9%

2017

356,661

6,500

27,232

-

90,000

480,393

18.7%

18.7%

2018

324,231

7,091

20,049

-

-

351,371

-

-

2017

9,230

-

877

-

-

10,107

-

-

2018

300,366

963

19,497

12,517

(35,000)

298,343

(35.6%)

(35.6%)

Executive Directors
Steve Banning (resigned 22 February 2017)
Executives
Flora Furness 1
Dan Drewe (appointed 9 June 2017)
Iulius Mincu (resigned 15 June 2018)

2017

315,946

2,310

30,015

-

35,000

383,271

9.1%

9.1%

Craig White (appointed 17 February 2017, resigned 9 June 2017)

2017

134,116

2,600

12,113

-

-

148,829

-

-

Naomi Rule (appointed 11 December 2017, resigned 17 April 2018)

2018

107,885

-

8,268

14,553

-

130,706

-

-

Paul Bowker (resigned 17 February 2017)

2017

204,230

3,900

21,577

170,192

(29,250)

370,649

(7.9%)

(7.9%)

Total executive directors and executives

2018

1,161,296

15,145

66,986

366,741

43,000

1,653,168

2017

1,418,809

19,210

114,506

260,192

94,358

1,907,075

2018

1,436,968

15,145

72,116

366,741

47,245

1,938,215

2017

1,713,809

19,210

114,506

260,192

104,779

2,212,496

Total KMP Remuneration

1 Termination benefits included in the table represent amounts accrued at 30 June 2018 in respect of termination benefits that were paid on 6 July 2018.
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(continued)
Remuneration report - audited (continued)
(e) Remuneration expenses for executive KMP (continued)
Equity instruments
KMP disclosed below were issued Performance Rights as detailed below that impact on compensation in the 2017 or subsequent
reporting periods. The service or performance criteria used to determine the number of Performance Rights issued is set out
earlier in this report in the discussion of the Company’s LTI Plan.
No terms of equity-settled share-based payment transactions have been altered or modified by the issuing entity since the date
of grant. All Performance Rights were provided at no cost to the recipients. Performance Rights expire on the earlier of their
expiry date or termination of the individual’s employment.
Analysis of incentives included in remuneration
Details of the vesting profile of the Performance Rights granted to KMP and impacting on compensation in the 2017 reporting
period as at the date of this report, or subsequent reporting periods that are still outstanding are detailed below.

Forfeited in
Year

Number at
Reporting
Date

Financial
Years in
which Grant
Vests

Name

Instrument

Number

Grant Date

Fair Value per
instrument at
grant date

Flora
Furness

Performance
Rights

138,462

28-Sep-16

$0.39

-

-

138,462

2018

Performance
Rights

200,000

25-Oct-17

$0.30

-

-

200,000

2018-2019

Iulius Mincu

Performance
Rights

134,615

28-Sep-16

$0.39

-

100%

-

2018

Richard
Robinson

Performance
Rights

16,666

24-Nov-16

$0.44

100%

-

-

2018

Vested in
Year

Other terms
Performance Rights granted under the LTI Plan carry no voting or dividend entitlements. Currently, based on the number of
Performance Rights issued and held pursuant to the LTI Plan, should all of these securities convert to shares they would
represent 0.41% of the Company's issued share capital.
Exercise of Options or Performance Rights
During the year 16,666 shares were issued to Richard Robinson with a fair value at grant date of $0.44. The shares issued were
on the conversion of Performance Rights granted in prior years as compensation. No exercise price was payable on the
conversion of the Performance Rights.
Exercise of Options or Performance Rights (continued)
During the year 134,615 Performance Rights issued to Iulius Mincu in 2016 were forfeited on cessation of employment
No other Performance Rights previously granted to KMPs were exercised during the reporting period.
On Market Purchases
All shares underpinning equity awards may be purchased on market or be newly issued shares or a combination of both. As at 1
July 2017, the LogiCamms Employee Share Trust held 91,981 ordinary LogiCamms share which had been purchased on market
in prior periods. During the 2018 financial year, the LogiCamms Employee Share Trust purchased nil shares on-market and
allocated 2,920 shares.
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(continued)
Remuneration report - audited (continued)
(f)

Overview of the Company's service contracts with Executives

Name

Status

Flora Furness

Current1

Position

Term of
agreement

Notice
period

Fixed
remuneration

Non-monetary benefits

$
Chief Executive
Officer

Permanent

8 months 450,000

Car park and mobile
phone,

Performance
based
remuneration
STI %

LTI %

40%

60%

200,000 performance
rights
Dan Drewe

Current

Chief Financial
Officer2

Permanent

3 months 350,0492

Car park and mobile
phone

30%

50%

Naomi Rule

Former

Chief Operating
Officer

Permanent

3 months

350,049

Car park and mobile
phone

30%

50%

Iulius Mincu

Former

Director Permanent
Technology,
Innovation and Asset
Performance

3 months

350,000

Car park and mobile
phone

30%

30%

1

Current as at 30 June 2018. Resigned effective 6 July 2018.

2

Effective from 6 July, 2018, Dan Drewe is fulfilling the role of Interim Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer until such time as a new Chief

Executive Officer commences with the Company. During this time, the Board has agreed to increase his remuneration to reflect the increased responsibilities
of this role. The increase includes a cash component of $5,000 per month and a monthly award of ordinary shares of a number equal to the value of $5,000
calculated using a volume weighted average price of the Company’s ordinary shares over the relevant month.

Overview of the group's Current Service Contracts with Key Management Personnel
It is the Group’s policy that service contracts for executive KMP, are unlimited in term but capable of termination on between 3 and
12 months’ notice. The Group retains the right to terminate a KMP contract immediately by making payment of between 3 and 8
months’ pay in lieu of notice. The KMP are also entitled to receive on termination of employment their statutory entitlements of
accrued annual and long service leave, together with any superannuation benefits.
The KMP have no entitlement to termination payment in the event of removal for misconduct.
(g) Non- executive director arrangements
Remuneration Policy
The Board seeks to set aggregate remuneration of non-executive directors at a level that provides the Group with the ability to
attract and retain directors of appropriate calibre, whilst incurring a cost that is acceptable to shareholders.
The amount of aggregate remuneration sought to be approved by shareholders and the fee structure is reviewed annually against
fees paid to non-executive directors (NEDs) of comparable companies.
The Company’s constitution and the ASX listing rules specify that the NED fee pool shall be determined from time to time by a
general meeting. The latest determination by shareholders approved an aggregate fee pool of up to $600,000 with such fees to be
allocated to the Directors as the Board of Directors may determine.
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(continued)
Remuneration report - audited (continued)
(g) Non- executive director arrangements (continued)
Structure
The remuneration of NEDs consists of directors’ fees which includes committee fees. NEDs do not receive retirement benefits.
Mr Richard Robinson and Mr Charles Rottier received a base fee of $75,000 inclusive of superannuation for being directors of
the Group. The Board Chairman, Mr Peter Watson, received a base fee of $120,000 (2017: $140,000) inclusive of
superannuation for the period. Mr Peter Wall, who retired during the year, received a base fee of $80,000 inclusive of
superannuation.
There are no additional fees for serving on a committee. NEDs do not participate in the Company’s STI or LTI plans.
Movements in shares
The movement during the reporting year in the number of ordinary shares in the Company held directly, indirectly or beneficially,
by KMP, is as follows:
Balance at
30 June 2017

Received on vesting
of rights

Ceased to be a
KMP

Other changes

Balance at
30 June 2018

Peter Watson

917,169

-

-

-

917,169

Peter Wall 1

239,475

-

(239,475)

-

-

33,334

16,666

-

-

50,000

30,000

-

-

80,500

110,500

Flora Furness

138,462

-

-

-

138,462

Iulius Mincu

134,615

-

(134,615)

-

-

Dan Drewe

-

-

-

-

-

Name

Richard Robinson
Charles Rottier

2

1

Peter Wall retired on 25 October 2017, balance at EOFY is representative at 25 October 2017.

2

Charles Rottier was appointed 4 September 2017, balance at SOFY is representative at 4 September 2017. Other changes during the period represent

shares that were acquired on market.

Directors interests
The relevant interest of each Director in the Shares and Performance Rights issued by the Company at the date of this report is
as follows:
Director

Ordinary Shares

Performance Rights

Peter Watson

917,169

-

Richard Robinson

50,000

-

Charles Rottier

110,500

-

Options and rights granted to Directors and Officers of the Company
During or since the end of the financial year, the Company granted no additional rights over unissued ordinary shares in the
Company to the Key Management Personnel.
The Performance Rights require the holder to remain employed by the Company prior to vesting. Performance Rights over
unissued ordinary shares in the Company granted in the previous financial year were detailed in the previous Annual Report.
Unissued shares under options
At the date of this report there are no other unissued ordinary shares of the Company under option.

** End of Remuneration Report
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Indemnification and insurance of officers and auditors
Under the Company’s Constitution, the Company indemnifies each current and former officer of the Group against certain
liabilities and costs incurred by them as an officer of the Group, except where the liability arises out of conduct involving a lack of
good faith. The Company also indemnifies each current and former officer of the Group against certain liabilities and costs
incurred when the officer acts as an officer of another body corporate at the Company’s request and the liability or cost is
incurred in that capacity. Neither indemnity extends to liabilities or costs from which the Company is prohibited from indemnifying
current or former officers under the Corporations Act.
In addition, the Company has entered into Deeds of Access, Indemnity and Insurance with certain officers of the Group. Under
those Deeds, the Company agrees to matters including the following:

•

Indemnify the officer to the extent permitted by law and under the Company’s Constitution; and

•

Maintain a Director’s and Officer’s insurance policy.

Since the end of the previous financial year the Group has paid insurance premiums of $138,558 (2017: $84,829) in respect of
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policies.

Non-audit services
During the year PwC, the Group’s auditor, did not perform any other services in addition to their statutory duties. Michael
Shewan is the partner of PwC that is the auditor of the Group for the year.
As PwC did not perform any other services in addition to their statutory duties, the Directors are satisfied that the provision of
non-audit services during the year is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by the
Corporations Act 2001.
Details of the amounts paid to the auditor of the Group, PwC, and its related practices for audit and non-audit services provided
during the year are set out in note 4(h) of the Financial Report below. No amounts were paid to other auditors in respect of the
statutory audit.
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After Balance Date Events
Extension of finance facilities
Subsequent to the end of the financial year, the NAB Multi-Option facility was amended, with the limit formally reduced from
$11.0 million to $10.5 million (split $6.0 million working capital and $4.5 million bank guarantee facility) and the expiry date
extended until 30 September 2019. Financial covenants remain the same but several additional requirements were added:
•

The Company is to make quarterly repayment into a NAB term deposit 45 days after each quarter end, commencing
February 2019, based on the greater of a fixed payment schedule or a percentage of adjusted EBITDA (a defined term
in the agreement).

•

Capital expenditure is limited to $1.5 million.

•

The Company must report to NAB the results of a strategic review of its operations and funding options by 2 November
2018.

•

By 30 November 2018 the Company must provide to NAB evidence of the Board’s approval to commence a course of
action to execute one of its strategic funding options.

•

By 31 January 2019 the Company must provide to NAB evidence of the commencement of implementation of one of
the strategic options along with monthly reporting of the progress of its strategy.

Since the end of the financial year, the Directors are not aware of any other matters or circumstances not otherwise dealt with in
this report or the financial statements that have, or may, significantly affect the operations or state of affairs of the Group in future
years.

Environmental Regulation and Performance
The Group’s operations are subject to Australian Commonwealth and State environmental legislation as well as legislation in
New Zealand and Papua New Guinea. The Group has appropriate environmental management systems in place to monitor and
manage compliance with existing environmental regulations and new regulations as they come into force. LogiCamms has not
been fined or prosecuted for any breaches of environmental regulations during the financial year.

Proceedings on behalf of the company
No person has applied to the Court under section 237 of the Corporations Act 2001 for leave to bring proceedings on behalf of
the Company, or to intervene in any proceedings to which the Company is a party, for the purpose of taking responsibility on
behalf of the Company for all or part of those proceedings.
No proceedings have been brought or intervened in on behalf of the Company with leave of the Court under section 237 of the
Corporations Act 2001.

Auditor's independence declaration
A copy of the auditor's independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is set out on page 71.

Rounding of amounts
The Company is of a kind referred to in ASIC Corporations (Rounding in Financial/Directors' Reports) Instrument 2016/191 dated
24 March 2016. Amounts in the Directors' report have been rounded off in accordance with that Legislative Instrument to the
nearest thousand dollars, or in certain cases, to the nearest dollar.
This report is made in accordance with a resolution of Directors.

Peter Watson
Chairman
Brisbane
31 August 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
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Notes

2018
$'000

2017
$'000

4(a)

81,750

81,063

Cost of sales

(52,675)

(52,624)

Gross profit

29,075

28,439

387

323

(3,953)

(6,179)

(25,753)

(34,020)

341

668

97

(10,769)

Revenue

Other income

4(b)

Business development expenses
Other expenses
Onerous lease benefit
Profit / (loss) from operating activities

Finance income

4(c)

7

4

Finance expenses

4(d)

(359)

(85)

(352)

(81)

-

(15)

-

(11,000)

(255)

(21,865)

(518)

(1,750)

(773)

(23,615)

(597)

325

-

(26)

(597)

299

(1,370)

(23,316)

Net finance expenses

Share of net loss of equity accounted investees

9(b)

Impairment charge
Loss before income tax

Income tax expense

4(e)

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company

Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Foreign currency translation differences
Other
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share (cents per share)

4(f)

(0.9)

(30.6)

Diluted earnings per share (cents per share)

4(f)

(0.9)

(30.6)

The above Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying notes.
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Notes

2018
$'000

2017
$'000

Cash and cash equivalents

5(a)

4,156

4,983

Trade and other receivables

5(b)

19,982

18,245

Current tax asset

4(e)

86

-

24,224

23,228

ASSETS

Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment

6(a)

2,668

2,877

Deferred tax assets

4(e)

2,911

3,328

Intangible assets

6(b)

20,745

21,537

Total non-current assets

26,324

27,742

Total assets

50,548

50,970

LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables

5(c)

8,544

7,576

Borrowings

5(g)

5,820

4,000

Current tax liability

4(e)

-

122

Employee benefits

5(e)

3,507

3,591

Provisions

5(f)

2,319

3,839

Deferred income

5(d)

4,425

2,242

24,615

21,370

Total current liabilities

Trade and other payables

5(c)

744

1,210

Employee benefits

5(e)

298

839

Borrowings

5(g)

135

-

Provisions

5(f)

1,323

2,779

2,500

4,828

Total liabilities

27,115

26,198

Net assets

23,433

24,772

57,619

57,619

2,163

2,760

(36,349)

(35,607)

23,433

24,772

Total non-current liabilities

EQUITY
Share capital
Reserves
Accumulated losses
Total equity attributable to owners of the Company

The above Consolidated Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Attributable to owners of LogiCamms

Share capital
$'000

Reserves
$'000

Accumulated
losses
$'000

Total
$'000

53,163

2,435

(11,973)

43,625

Loss for the year

-

-

(23,615)

(23,615)

Other comprehensive income

-

325

(26)

299

Total comprehensive income for the year

-

325

(23,641)

(23,316)

4,456

-

-

4,456

-

-

7

7

Balance at 30 June 2017

57,619

2,760

(35,607)

24,772

Balance at 1 July 2017

57,619

2,760

(35,607)

24,772

Balance at 1 July 2016

Issuance of shares
Employee share scheme

Loss for the year

-

-

(773)

(773)

Other comprehensive income

-

(597)

-

(597)

Total comprehensive income for the year

-

(597)

(773)

(1,370)

Employee share scheme

-

-

31

31

57,619

2,163

(36,349)

23,433

Balance at 30 June 2018

The above Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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2018
$'000

2017
$'000

84,519

83,963

(85,567)

(93,446)

(1,048)

(9,483)

Interest paid

(359)

(85)

Income taxes (paid)/refunded

(211)

401

(1,618)

(9,167)

7

4

16

4

Notes
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers and employees

Net cash outflow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

6(a)

(628)

(668)

Acquisition of intangible assets

6(b)

(515)

(283)

(1,120)

(943)

Net cash outflow from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issues of shares and other equity securities

7(a)

-

4,456

Proceeds from borrowings - external

5(g)

1,955

4,000

Net cash inflow from financing activities

1,955

8,456

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

(783)

(1,654)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of financial year

4,983

6,637

(44)

-

4,156

4,983

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year

5(a)

The above Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2018

1

General information

LogiCamms Limited (the “Company”) is a company domiciled in Australia. The address of the Company’s registered office is
Level 14, 200 Mary Street, Brisbane, Australia. The Consolidated financial statements of the Company as at and for the year
ended 30 June 2018 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as "the Group” and individually as “Group
entities”) and the Group’s interest in associates and jointly controlled entities.
The Group is primarily involved with the energy, resources and infrastructure sectors providing engineering consulting services
primarily in Australia and New Zealand. Comparative information has been reclassified where appropriate to enhance
comparability.
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 31 August 2018.

2

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates that the Group will continue to meet
its commitments, realise its assets and settle its liabilities in the normal course of business.
The Group recorded an operating loss in FY18 of $0.3 million (2017: loss of $10.9 million excluding impairment charge) and net
operating cash outflows of $1.6 million (2017: outflow of $9.2 million). These results were a substantial improvement on the prior
year and followed the significant restructuring undertaken in FY17 to cut $10.5 million of overhead costs from the business. To
fund the net operating cash outflow, the Group drew down additional borrowings under its NAB working capital facility of $1.25
million.
The Group operates its business activities through careful management of its cash reserves, operating cash flows and a “MultiOption” finance facility provided by NAB. At 30 June 2018, this facility had a limit of $11.0 million, split $7.0 million to working
capital and $4.0 million to bank guarantees. The Group also had an asset finance facility with a limit of $0.5 million. Subsequent
to the end of the financial year the NAB Multi-Option facility has been renewed with the term extended to 30 September 2019.
As part of the extension agreement, the limit of the Multi-Option facility was reduced to $10.5 million, split $6.0 million to working
capital and $4.5 million to guarantees, while the equipment finance facility limit was increased by $0.3 million to $0.8 million. The
sub-limits can be reallocated between working capital and bank guarantees at any time. Available headroom in the facility at 30
June 2018 was $1.95 million. This headroom declined to $1.45m in August 2018 following the reduction in overall limit of $0.5
million. Further details on the bank facilities, including applicable financial covenants, can be found in note 5(g). The covenants
include a requirement for various actions relating to a strategic review of its operations and funding options.
The Directors are cognisant that the Multi-Option working capital facility is not intended to operate as long-term debt. Several
years of operating losses have resulted in a net deficiency of current assets compared to current liabilities. The Board is
committed to restoring financial strength and liquidity to the Group’s balance sheet and has engaged an external advisor to
review the Group’s strategic funding options. These options may include the sale of an asset or business unit, an equity raising or
long-term debt funding. Any funds that flow into the Group as a result of a strategic funding option will be applied to both paying
down outstanding borrowings and for working capital to support the growth of the business.
The nature of the Group's work also requires that bank guarantees or bonds are issued in relation to certain projects during the
construction phase or in respect of warranty periods for control systems and electrical instrumentation. At 30 June 2018, the
Group had on issue $3.8 million in bank guarantees and bonds. The Group believes that the $1.45 million headroom available
under the NAB facilities as at August 2018 is sufficient to meet the future bank guarantee requirements of any currently identified
projects or proposals.
The Group has prepared detailed cash flow forecasts for the next twelve months which show an improvement in operating cash
flows and a return to profitability. This is supported by the fact that the Group entered the 2018 financial year with its strongest
order book in several years, with work in hand of $30.8 million (2017: $25.1 million) representing approximately 37% of the
Group’s forecast revenue (excluding training) for the upcoming financial year.
Cash on hand at 30 June 2018 was $4.2 million and the Group continues to have a strong cash collection and billing cycle over
its debtors and work in progress (WIP), with minimal debts being written off during the course of the 2018 financial year.
The Group’s forecasts and projections, taking into account reasonably possible changes in trading performance, show that the
Director's expect the group to operate within the limit of its current facilities. The Group believes that the cash on hand and
headroom available under the Multi-Option facility with NAB will be sufficient to meet the foreseeable future working capital and
bank guarantee requirements of the business. However, should forecasts indicate that additional working capital is required in
the future, the Directors are confident that the Group will be able to raise additional funds through an equity raising, by obtaining
alternative longer-term debt facilities or through the sale of assets.
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Basis of preparation (continued)

Based on the current cash position, facilities in place, cost savings achieved in the prior year restructure, as well as the Group's
work in hand and proposal pipeline, the Directors believe that the Group will continue to meet its debts as and when they fall due,
and accordingly, have prepared the annual financial report on a going concern basis.
(a)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards (“AASs”) (including Australian Interpretations adopted by the Australian Accounting Standards
Board (“AASB”)) and the Corporations Act 2001. The consolidated financial statements comply with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and interpretations adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board.
(b)

Basis of measurement and presentation currency

The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis.
The Consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
The Company is of a kind referred to in legislative instrument 2016/191 and in accordance with that legislative instrument, all
financial information presented in Australian dollars has been rounded to the nearest thousand unless otherwise stated.
(c)

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.
In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies
that have the most significant effect on amounts recognised in the financial statements are included in the following notes:

•

Note 2 - Basis of preparation

•

Notes 4(a) and 5(b) - revenue recognition and project work in progress

•

Note 4(e) – recoverability of deferred tax assets

•

Note 6(b) - measurement of the recoverable amounts of cash-generating units containing goodwill
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Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated financial
statements and have been applied consistently by the Group.
(a)

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except where the amount of
GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority. In these circumstances, the GST is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.
(b)

Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currency of the Group entities at exchange rates at
the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency
using the exchange rate at that date. Foreign currency gains or losses on monetary items is the difference between amortised
cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the year, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the year, and the
amortised cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the year.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are retranslated to the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured based on
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Foreign operations
The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated
to the presentation currency at exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are
translated to Australian dollars at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign currency differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and presented in the foreign currency translation reserve in equity.
When the settlement of a monetary item receivable from or payable to a foreign operation is neither planned nor likely in the
foreseeable future, foreign exchange gains and losses arising from such items are considered to form part of the net investment
in the foreign operation and are recognised in other comprehensive income and presented in the translation reserve in equity.
(c)

New accounting standards and interpretations not yet adopted

The Group has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for the annual reporting period commencing 1
July 2017:
•
•

AASB 2016-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised
Losses
AASB 2016-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosure Initiative: Amendments to AASB 107

None of these have had a significant effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
The following amendments have been published that are not mandatory for 30 June 2018 reporting periods and have not been
early adopted by the Group.
•
•

AASB 2017-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Further Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle
AASB 2017-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Transfers of Investment Property, Annual
Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle and Other Amendments.

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 July
2018. The Group has not elected to adopt early any accounting standards and/or amendments.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)

New accounting standards and interpretations not yet adopted (continued)

At the date of authorisation of the financial statements, the Standards and Interpretations listed below were in issue but not yet
effective:
Title of standard

AASB 9 Financial Instruments

Nature of change

AASB 9 addresses the classification, measurement and derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities, introduces
new rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment model for financial assets.

Impact

The majority of the Group's financial assets are in the form of cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables.
Accordingly, the Group does not expect the new guidance to have a significant impact on the classification and
measurement of its financial assets.
The new impairment model requires the recognition of impairment provisions based on expected credit losses rather than
only incurred credit losses as is the case under AASB 139. It applies to financial assets classified at amortised cost, debt
instruments measured at FVOCI, contract assets under AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, lease
receivables, loan commitments and certain financial guarantee contracts. Management are yet to perform an assessment of
the impact of the ECL model on the Group’s trade receivables. However, the standard is not expected to have a material
impact on the results of LogiCamms given its historically low level of bad debt write-offs.
The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure requirements and changes in presentation. These are expected to
change the nature and extent of the Group’s disclosures about its financial instruments particularly in the year of the
adoption of the new standard.

Date of adoption
by Group

Must be applied for financial years commencing on or after 1 January 2018. The Group will apply the new rules
retrospectively from 1 July 2018, with practical expedients permitted under the standard. Comparatives for 30 June 2018
will not be restated.

Title of standard

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Nature of change

The AASB has issued a new standard for the recognition of revenue. This will replace AASB 118 which covers revenue
arising from the sale of goods and the rendering of services and AASB 111 which covers construction contracts.
The new standard is based on the principle that revenue is recognised when control of a good or service transfers to a
customer. The amount of revenue to be recognised should reflect the amount the entity expects to receive.
The standard permits either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach for the adoption.

Impact

Management is currently assessing the effects of applying the new standard on the Group’s financial statements.
At this stage, the Group has not yet completed its assessment of the effect of the new rules on the Group’s financial
statements. However, the majority of the Group’s revenue is from short term contracts recognised on a percentage of
completion basis and this will continue to be the case under the new standard. Management are still assessing the impact
of the standard on the Group’s fixed price projects and warranty obligations.
The application of AASB15 may further result in the identification of separate performance obligations in relation to some
contracts which could affect the timing of the recognition of revenue in future periods.

Date of adoption
by Group

The Group will adopt the standard using the modified retrospective approach which means that the cumulative impact of
the adoption will be recognised in retained earnings as of 1 July 2018 and that comparatives will not be restated.

Title of standard

AASB 16 Leases

Nature of change

Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised.

Impact

As at the reporting date, the Group has operating lease commitments of $8.9 million. The Group is currently in the process
of assessing the impact of the new standard with the major impacts expected to be the recognition of an asset and a liability
for future payments in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and the reclassification of lease payments from an
operating cash outflow to a financing cash outflow in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.
Some of the commitments may be covered by an exception for short-term and low-value leases and some commitments
may relate to arrangements that will not qualify as leases under AASB16.
However, the impact of this new standard will result in lower operating expenses and higher depreciation and finance
expenses, as long-term premises leases are brought onto the balance sheet as both an asset and liability. Debt to equity
ratios will increase.

Date of adoption by
Group

Mandatory for financial years commencing on or after 1 January 2019. At this stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date. The Group intends to apply the simplified transitions approach and will not restate
comparative amounts for the year prior to first adoption.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)

New accounting standards and interpretations not yet adopted (continued)

There are no other standards that are not yet effective and that are expected to have a material impact on the entity in the current
or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.
(d)

Other accounting policies

Significant and other accounting policies that summarise the measurement basis used and are relevant to an understanding of
the financial statements are provided throughout the notes to the financial statements.

4

Operations - results for the year

(a)

Revenue

Project and services revenue
Training courses

2018
$’000

2017
$’000

75,849

75,760

5,901

5,303

81,750

81,063

Revenue from projects and services
With respect to fixed price contracts, revenue is recognised depending on the stage of completion of those services. The Group
estimates the percentage of costs based on the portion that contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the
estimated total contract costs.
Contract revenue includes the initial amount agreed in the contract plus any variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments to the extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue and can be measured reliably.
When the outcome of a contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs
incurred that are likely to be recoverable. An expected loss on a contract is recognised immediately in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.
Revenue from training courses
Revenue from training courses is recognised when the course is completed.
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Operations - results for the year (continued)

(b)

Other income
2018
$’000

2017
$’000

-

300

Net foreign exchange gains

181

-

Rental income

120

-

86

23

387

323

2018
$’000

2017
$’000

7

4

7

4

2018
$'000

2017
$'000

Personnel expenses

48,469

54,424

Contractor expenses

8,237

4,569

Contributions to defined contribution superannuation funds

3,774

4,561

Operating leases

3,615

3,046

Depreciation

803

1,099

Amortisation

942

1,552

Interest expense on financial liabilities

359

85

Notes
Reduction in earn outs payable

9(c)

Other

(c)

Finance income

Interest income on bank deposits

(d)

Expenses

The statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income includes the following specific expenses:

Personnel expenses and Contributions to defined contribution superannuation funds
The Group’s accounting policy for liabilities associated with employee benefits is set out in Note 5(e). All employees in Australia
and New Zealand are party to a defined contribution scheme and receive fixed contributions from the Group and the Group’s legal
or constructive obligation is limited to these contributions. Contributions to defined contribution funds are recognised as an
expense as they become payable.
Operating leases
Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease
incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease.
Depreciation and amortisation
The Group’s accounting policies for depreciation and amortisation are set out in Notes 6(a) and 6(b).
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Operations - results for the year (continued)

(e)

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity or in other comprehensive
income.

Income tax expense
2018
$’000

2017
$’000

-

213

119

136

Current tax expense
Current year
Withholding tax paid
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods

-

17

119

366

Decrease in deferred tax assets

399

1,384

Total income tax expense

518

1,750

Deferred tax expense

Numerical reconciliation between tax expense and pre-tax accounting profit

Loss for the year
Total income tax expense
Loss before income tax
Income tax using the Company's domestic tax rate of 30.0% (2017 - 30.0%)

2018

2017

$'000

$'000

(773)

(23,615)

518

1,750

(255)

(21,865)

(77)

(6,560)

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable)
in calculating taxable income:
Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions
Non-deductible expenses - Goodwill impairment
Non-deductible expenses - other

(2)

3

-

3,300

17

(146)

Non-assessable income

(78)

(90)

Withholding taxes paid

119

136

Franking credits
Tax losses and incentives not recognised
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods
Total income tax expense

-

213

539

4,877

-

17

518

1,750

The difference between the actual income tax expense and the income tax expense using the Company’s domestic rate of 30% is
mainly attributable to tax losses and incentives not recognised combined with goodwill impairment.
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Operations - results for the year (continued)

(e)

Taxation (continued)

Current tax assets and liabilities
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Current tax asset
Current tax liability

2018
$’000

2017
$’000

86

-

-

(122)

The current tax asset relates to prepaid income tax held in a tax pool deposit in New Zealand.
Tax assets and liabilities - recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.
Deferred tax is based upon the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using
the applicable tax rates. Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets; and
they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.
Deferred tax assets
2018
$'000

2017
$'000

19

114

129

228

1,136

1,322

351

494

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
Trade receivables
Fixed Assets
Employee benefits
Other payables
Revenue received in advance

1,328

673

Provisions

1,261

1,813

-

15

4,224

4,659

(1,313)

(1,331)

2,911

3,328

Share based payments

Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant to set-off provisions
Net deferred tax assets
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Operations - results for the year (continued)

(e)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets (continued)
Trade
receivables

Fixed
assets

Employee
benefits

Other
payables

Revenue
received in
advance

Provisions

Share
based
payments

Total

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$’000

$'000

At 1 July 2016

51

258

1,606

1,170

8

2,080

41

5,214

(Charged)/credited

63

(30)

(284)

(676)

665

(267)

(26)

(555)

Movements

- to profit or loss
(Charged)/credited –
to Reserves

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

At 30 June 2017

114

228

1,322

494

673

1,813

15

4,659

At 1 July 2017

114

228

1,322

494

673

1,813

15

4,659

(95)

(99)

(186)

(143)

655

(552)

-

(420)

-

-

-

-

-

-

(15)

(15)

19

129

1,136

351

1,328

1,261

-

4,224

(Charged)/credited
- to profit or loss
(Charged)/credited –
to Reserves
At 30 June 2018

Deferred tax
2018
$'000

2017
$'000

(1,313)

(1,331)

1,313

1,331

-

-

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
Work in progress
Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant to set-off provisions
Net deferred tax liabilities
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Operations - results for the year (continued)

(e)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (continued)
Equity
accounted
investee

Work in
progress

Total

$'000

$'000

$'000

(24)

(477)

(501)

24

(854)

(830)

At 30 June 2017

-

(1,331)

(1,331)

At 1 July 2017

-

(1,331)

(1,331)

Charged/(credited) - profit or loss

-

18

18

At 30 June 2018

-

(1,313)

(1,313)

Movements
At 1 July 2016
Charged/(credited) - profit or loss

Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences:

•

Initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit;

•

Differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to the extent that it is probable that they will
not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

•

Initial recognition of goodwill.

At 30 June 2018 there were unrecognised and unused tax losses of $7.4 million (2017: $7.7 million)
Tax consolidation
The Company and its wholly-owned Australian resident entities are part of a Tax Consolidated Group. As a consequence, all
members of the Tax Consolidated Group are taxed as a single entity. The head entity within the Tax Consolidated Group is
LogiCamms Limited.
(f)

Earnings per share

Reconciliation of earnings used in calculating earnings per share
2018
$'000

2017
$'000

(773)

(23,615)

WANOS1 used to calculate basic EPS (Shares)

81,648

77,175

WANOS1 used to calculate diluted EPS (Shares)

81,922

77,393

Basic EPS (cents per share)

(0.9)

(30.6)

Diluted EPS (cents per share)

(0.9)

(30.6)

Loss for the year

1

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
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Operations - results for the year (continued)

(f)

Earnings per share (continued)
2018
'000

2017
'000

81,648

77,175

274

218

81,922

77,393

Number of shares
WANOS used to calculate basic EPS (Shares)
Effect of performance rights on issue
WANOS used to calculate diluted EPS (Shares)

Subsequent to the reporting date 338,462 Performance Rights vested and were issued which would impact on the above EPS
calculations.
Calculation of earnings per share
Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated as net profit attributable to members of the parent, adjusted to exclude any costs of
servicing equity (other than dividends), divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares, adjusted for any bonus
elements.
Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share are calculated as net profit attributable to members of the parent, adjusted for:

•

Cost of servicing equity (other than dividends)

•

the after-tax effect of dividends and interest associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares that have been recognised as
expenses; and

•

other non-discretionary changes in revenue or expenses during the year that would result from the dilution of potential
ordinary shares divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares and dilutive potential ordinary shares, adjusted
for any bonus element.

(g) Segment reporting
The Group has a single reportable segment in which it operates, being engineering services. This is based on information that is
internally provided to the Managing Director for assessing performance and making operating decisions. Therefore, no additional
disclosures in relation to the revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities and other material items have been made.
The Company is domiciled in Australia, with operations located across Australia and in New Zealand. Revenue and non-current
assets are attributed to the above regions based on the revenue earned and non-current assets owned by the subsidiaries
domiciled in each region and are as follows:
2018
$'000

2017
$'000

Australia

70,900

69,406

New Zealand

10,850

11,657

81,750

81,063

Revenue
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Operations - results for the year (continued)

(g) Segment reporting (continued)
2018
$’000

2017
$’000

23,091

24,096

322

318

23,413

24,414

Non-current assets excluding deferred tax assets
Australia
New Zealand

No customer of the Group represents greater than 10% of the Group's total revenues for the year ended 30 June 2018. One
customer in the Hydrocarbon sector accounted for greater than 10% of revenue in the year ended 30 June 2017 ($8.9 million).
(h) Auditors’ remuneration
During the year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the auditor of the parent entity, its related
practices and non-related audit firms:
2018
$

2017
$

216,000

200,000

216,000

200,000

-

-

-

-

216,000

200,000

PwC
Audit services
Audit of the Company's Financial Report

Non-audit services
Other services

Total remuneration of PwC

5

Operations - Operating assets and liabilities

(a) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash balances reconcile to the amount of cash shown in the statement of cash flows at the end of the financial year.
The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk and a sensitivity analysis for financial assets and liabilities is disclosed in Note 8(b).
Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from
investing and financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are classified as operating cash flows.
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Operations - Operating assets and liabilities (continued)

(a) Cash and cash equivalents (continued)
Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities (continued)
2018
$'000

2017
$'000

(773)

(23,615)

1,746

2,643

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss for the year
Adjustment for
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment of goodwill

-

11,000

47

129

Net loss on sale of non-current assets

5

13

Equity accounted investee transactions

-

15

(7)

(4)

-

32

Equity settled share-based payments transactions

Reclassification of interest to investing
Finance charge accruals
Income tax expense
Operating profit / (loss) before changes in working capital and provisions

16

2,015

1,034

(7,772)

Change in trade and other receivables

(1,051)

1,688

Change in trade and other payables

(3,173)

(3,696)

Change in deferred income

2,183

1,561

Change in provisions and employee benefits

(611)

(948)

(1,618)

(9,167)

2018
$'000

2017
$'000

14,258

13,475

Net cash used in operating activities

(b) Trade and other receivables

Current
Trade receivables
Provision for impairment of receivables
Project work in progress
Provision for work in progress
Prepayments and sundry debtors

(65)

(381)

4,435

4,607

(70)

-

1,424

544

19,982

18,245

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment losses. At 30 June 2018 trade receivables include retentions of $0.02 million relating to contracts in
progress (2017: $0.02 million). The Group’s exposure to credit risk and impairment losses related to Trade and other receivables
(excluding project work in progress) are disclosed in Note 8(b).
Project work in progress
Project work in progress represents the gross unbilled amount expected to be collected from customers for contract work
performed to date. It is measured at cost plus profit recognised to date less progress billings and recognised losses. Cost includes
all expenditure related directly to specific projects and an allocation of fixed and variable overheads incurred in the Group’s
contract activities based on normal operating capacity. If payments received from customers exceed the income recognised, then
the difference is presented as deferred income in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.
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Operations - Operating assets and liabilities (continued)

(c) Trade and other payables
2018
$'000

2017
$'000

4,016

3,117

591

574

3,471

3,416

466

469

8,544

7,576

744

1,210

744

1,210

Current
Trade payables
GST payable
Accrued expenses
Lease incentives

Non-Current
Lease incentives

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value less transaction costs and subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
The Group’s exposure to currency and liquidity risk related to Trade and other payables is disclosed in Note 8(b).
Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to,
the Australian Tax Office ("ATO") is included as a current asset or liability in the statement of financial position.
(d) Deferred income
2018
$'000

2017
$'000

179

79

4,246

2,163

4,425

2,242

Revenue Received in Advance
Billings in advance

The Group’s policy in relation to deferred income is disclosed in Note 5(b).
(e) Employee benefits
2018

Leave obligations

Current
$’000

NonCurrent
$’000

3,507

298

2017

Total

Current
$’000

NonCurrent
$’000

Total

3,805

3,591

839

4,430

Annual leave, long service leave and time off in lieu
The liability for annual leave, long service leave and time off in lieu is measured as the present value of expected future payments
(including on-costs) for the service provided by employees up to the reporting date. Expected future payments are discounted
using the yield on high quality corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations.
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Operations - Operating assets and liabilities (continued)

(f)

Provisions
2018

Onerous lease provision
Superannuation provision

Current
$’000

NonCurrent
$’000

Total

Current
$’000

NonCurrent
$’000

1,235

358

Total

1,593

1,375

1,788

3,163

785

-

785

1,011

-

1,011

-

965

965

-

991

991

299

-

299

354

-

354

-

-

-

1,099

-

1,099

2,319

1,323

3,642

3,839

2,779

6,618

Make good provision
Service warranties

2017

Restructuring costs

Movements in provisions
The movement in provisions for the period is shown below:
Restructuring
obligations
$’000

Service
warranties
$’000

Onerous
lease
$’000

Make-good
provision
$’000

Superannuation
provision
$’000

Total
$’000

1,099

354

3,163

991

1,011

6,618

-

54

-

-

-

54

(1,099)

(109)

(1,275)

-

-

(2,483)

Derecognition of provision

-

-

(341)

-

(226)

(567)

Unwind of provision

-

-

46

(26)

-

20

Carrying amount at end of year

-

299

1,593

965

785

3,642

Carrying amount at the start of the year
Additional provisions recognised
Paid / utilised during the year

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be
estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
Warranty
A provision for warranty is usually recognised at the commencement of a project based on risks identified during the planning
stage. Projects are subsequently reviewed periodically to ensure provisions remain sufficient. A full reassessment is performed at
each reporting date, taking into account historical warranty expenses and contract terms to ensure the provision is appropriate.
Onerous leases
A provision for onerous leases is recognised when the expected benefits (expected lease inflows) to be derived by the Group
from a lease are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the lease. The provision is measured at the
present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the lease and the expected net cost of continuing the lease. Before
a provision is established, the Group recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with the lease.
Following successful negotiations to sublet 2 floors of the Group’s Perth office, an amount of $0.34 million was derecognised and
is presented separately on the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30
June 2018 (2017: An amount of $0.7 million was derecognised following successful negotiations to exit the lease for the Group's
former Brisbane head office).
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Operations - Operating assets and liabilities (continued)

(f)

Provisions (continued)

Movements in provisions (continued)
Superannuation provision
The Group has recognised a provision for superannuation amounts potentially owing to certain contractors falling in the SGA Act’s
expanded definition of employees. The provision is measured at the expected cost of settling the liability.
Make good provision
A make good obligation is recognised when the Group leases premises and the lease contract contains an obligation to return the
premises to its pre-lease condition at the conclusion of the lease. The provisions are calculated on a $/sqm basis, are reviewed
for appropriateness periodically, and recorded at the present value of the estimated future cost to make good the premises.
Restructure provision
A provision was recognised in 2017 for the value of termination payments to be paid to staff that were notified prior to 30 June
2017 that their role was redundant but that had not yet left the business at the balance sheet date. The provision was fully settled
during the year.

(g) Borrowings
2018

2017

Current
$’000

NonCurrent
$’000

Total

Current
$’000

NonCurrent
$’000

Total

5,250

-

5,250

4,000

-

4,000

45

135

180

-

-

-

5,295

135

5,430

4,000

-

4,000

525

-

525

-

-

-

5,820

135

5,955

4,000

-

4,000

Secured
Bank loans
Equipment finance loan
Total secured borrowings

Unsecured
Insurance premium funding
Total borrowings

(i)

Secured liabilities and assets pledged as security

Bank loans represent amounts borrowed under the Group’s multi-option working capital facility with NAB. The loan is in the form
of a 90 day market rate loan and is rolled over each 90 days. The carrying amount of the bank loans is a reasonable
approximation of their fair value.
The facility is secured by a fixed and floating charge over the Group’s assets. Covenants imposed by the bank include a Finance
Charges Cover Ratio, whereby the Group’s EBITDA, adjusted for onerous lease payments and any finance lease charges, must
exceed interest expenses by a ratio of 2:1 and also an EBITDA covenant whereby EBITDA must fall within 85% of the forecast
EBITDA provided to the bank as part of the annual renewal process. During the year, the Group breached this covenant in the
March 2018 quarter and forecast that it would breach the covenant in the June 2018 quarter. The Group obtained a waiver from
the bank for these breaches.
During the financial year the Group renewed its facilities with NAB, extending the expiry date of the facility to 31 March 201 9.
Details of the amount utilised and available at the reporting date is set out below:
Facility
NAB Multi-option Facility – working
capital allocation

Limit at 30 June 2018

Amount used

Amount available

$7.0 million

$5.25 million

$1.75 million
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Operations - Operating assets and liabilities (continued)

(g) Borrowings (continued)
(i)

Secured liabilities and assets pledged as security (continued)

Subsequent to the end of the financial year, the NAB Multi-Option facility was amended, with the limit formally reduced from $11.0
million to $10.5 million (split $6.0 million working capital and $4.5 million bank guarantee facility) and the expiry date extended
until 30 September 2019. Financial covenants remain the same but several additional requirements were added:
•

The Company is to make quarterly repayment into a NAB term deposit 45 days after each quarter end, commencing
February 2019, based on the greater of a fixed payment schedule or a percentage of adjusted EBITDA (a defined term
in the agreement).

•

Capital expenditure is limited to $1.5 million.

•

The Company must report to NAB the results of a strategic review of its operations and funding options by 2 November
2018.

•

By 30 November 2018 the Company must provide to NAB evidence of the Board’s approval to commence a course of
action to execute one of its strategic funding options.

•

By 31 January 2019 the Company must provide to NAB evidence of the commencement of implementation of one of the
strategic options along with monthly reporting of the progress of its strategy.

The Multi-Option facility also has a corporate credit card facility with a limit of $0.35 million (repaid monthly) and an asset finance
facility with a limit of $0.5 million (currently drawn $0.2 million, limit increased to $0.8 million subsequent to year end.
Finance leases
The Group leases various plant & equipment under finance leases expiring within 3 years. At the end of the lease the Group will
obtain ownership of the assets.
2018
$'000

2017
$'000

Commitments in relation to finance leases are payable as follows:
Within one year

56

-

Later than one year but not later than five years

148

-

Minimum lease payments

204

-

Future finance charges

(24)

-

Recognised as a liability

180

-

The present value of finance lease liabilities is as follows:
Within one year

45

-

Later than one year but not later than five years

135

-

Minimum lease payments

180

-
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Operations - Operating assets and liabilities (continued)

(g) Borrowings (continued)
(ii) Bank guarantees and contract performance bonds
The Group utilises bank guarantees and contract performance bonds as security for its obligations under premises leases and to
guarantee its performance and warranty obligations under certain construction, procurement and engineering services contracts.
The Group is no longer issuing guarantees under the AssetInsure facility. Outstanding guarantees will roll off over the next twelve
months. The following facilities were in place at 30 June 2018:
Facility

Limit at 30 June 2018

Amount used

Amount available

NAB Multi-Option Facility – bank guarantee allocation

$4.0 million

$3.8 million

$0.2 million

SwissRe AssetInsure contract bond facility

$0.3 million

$0.3 million

$nil

Total

$4.3 million

$4.1 million

$0.2 million

(iii)

Other facilities

The Group uses short term finance to fund expenses such as its insurance premiums and software licenses so that the cash flow
for these annual expenditures is spread over the year. These loans are not secured.
Net debt reconciliation
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for each of the periods presented:
2018
$'000

2017
$'000

Net debt
Cash and cash equivalents
Borrowings – repayable within one year
Borrowings – repayable after one year
Net debt

Cash
Gross debt – fixed interest rates
Gross debt – variable interest rates

Other assets

Cash
$’000
Net debt as at 1 July 2017

4,156

4,983

(5,820)

(4,000)

(135)

-

(1,799)

983

4,156

4,983

(705)

-

(5,250)

(4,000)

(1,799)

983

Liabilities from financing activities
Bank Equipment
loans
finance
$’000
$’000

Premium
funding
$’000

Total
$’000

4,983

(4,000)

-

-

983

(827)

(1,250)

15

-

(2,062)

Acquisitions – equipment lease

-

-

(195)

-

(195)

Insurance premium finance

-

-

-

(525)

(525)

4,156

(5,250)

(180)

(525)

(1,799)

Cash flows

Net debt
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Non-operating assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment
Plant and equipment
$'000

Motor Vehicles
$'000

Building fit outs
$'000

Total
$'000

Non-current assets
At 1 July 2016
Cost

2,537

286

3,429

6,252

(1,648)

(242)

(2,511)

(4,401)

889

44

918

1,851

Opening net book amount

889

44

918

1,851

Additions

378

-

2,141

2,519

Accumulated depreciation
Net book amount
Year ended 30 June 2017

Disposals
Depreciation charge
Transfers
Exchange differences
Closing net book amount

(14)

(4)

(433)

(451)

(315)

(36)

(748)

(1,099)

56

-

-

56

2

(1)

-

1

996

3

1,878

2,877

At 30 June 2017
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net book amount

3,325

263

4,087

7,675

(2,329)

(260)

(2,209)

(4,798)

996

3

1,878

2,877

Year ended 30 June 2018
Opening net book amount

996

3

1,878

2,877

Additions

628

-

-

628

Disposals

(10)

-

(11)

(21)

(335)

(1)

(467)

(803)

(7)

-

(6)

(13)

1,272

2

1,394

2,668

3,884

255

4,056

8,195

(2,612)

(253)

(2,662)

(5,527)

1,272

2

1,394

2,668

Depreciation charge
Exchange differences
Closing net book amount

At 30 June 2018
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net book amount
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Non-operating assets (continued)

(a) Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Recognition and measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment
is capitalised as part of that equipment.
When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items
(major components) of property, plant and equipment. Any gain or loss from derecognising the assets (the difference between the
proceeds of disposal and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in “Other income” in the period the asset is recognised.
Depreciation
Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of
property, plant and equipment. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is
reasonably certain that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. Land is not depreciated. Depreciation
methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date.
The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

•

Plant and equipment 3 - 10 years

•

Building fit out costs 4 - 7 years

•

Motor vehicles 4 - 5 years

Leased assets
Leases for which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Upon
initial recognition the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy
applicable to that asset. Other leases are operating leases and the leased assets are not recognised on the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position.
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Non-operating assets (continued)

(b) Intangible assets

Goodwill
$'000

Systems and
Software
$'000

Customer
contracts
$'000

Total
$'000

58,548

6,609

300

65,457

(28,100)

(3,256)

(300)

(31,656)

30,448

3,353

-

33,801

30,448

3,353

-

33,801

-

283

-

283

125

-

-

125

-

(1,552)

-

(1,552)

(11,000)

-

-

(11,000)

-

(56)

-

(56)

Exchange differences

(64)

-

-

(64)

Closing net book amount

19,509

2,028

-

21,537

58,609

7,519

300

66,428

(39,100)

(5,491)

(300)

(44,891)

19,509

2,028

-

21,537

19,509

2,028

-

21,537

Additions - internal development

-

515

-

515

Amortisation charge

-

(942)

-

(942)

Exchange differences

(365)

-

-

(365)

Closing net book amount

19,144

1,601

-

20,745

58,244

8,004

300

66,548

(39,100)

(6,403)

(300)

(45,803)

19,144

1,601

-

20,745

Non-Current assets
At 1 July 2016
Cost
Accumulation amortisation and impairment
Net book amount

Year ended 30 June 2017
Opening net book amount
Additions - internal development
Reclassification from investments
Amortisation charge
Impairment charge
Transfers

At 30 June 2017
Cost
Accumulation amortisation and impairment
Net book amount

Year ended 30 June 2018
Opening net book amount

At 30 June 2018
Cost
Accumulated amortisation
Net book amount

* Software includes capitalised internal development costs.
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Non-operating assets (continued)

(b) Intangible assets (continued)
Goodwill
Goodwill that is acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost. Goodwill is measured at the cost of the
acquisition less the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. Following initial rec ognition, goodwill
is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. In respect of equity accounted investees, the carrying amount of
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment.
Software and Systems
Capitalised software expenditure is initially recognised at cost. The expenditure capitalised includes the direct labour and
overhead costs that are directly attributable to preparing the asset for its intended use. Following initial recognition, software and
systems are carried at cost less amortisation and any impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised in the profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets, other than goodwill, from the date they are available for
use. The estimated useful life applied is between 4 and 6 years.

7

Capital and reserves

(a) Share capital and reserves
Share Capital

Number of ordinary shares
On issue at 1 July
Capital raising
Exercise of performance rights
On issue at 30 June - fully paid

2018
‘000

2017
‘000

81,740

69,430

-

12,310

17

-

81,757

81,740

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares and share options
are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.
The Company does not have authorised capital or par value in respect of its issued shares. The holders of ordinary shares are
entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All
shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.
Where share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the amount of consideration paid, which includes directly attributable
costs, net of any tax effects, is recognised as a deduction from equity.
As at 30 June 2018, 89,061 (2017: 91,981) treasury shares were included in the consolidated statements of financial position.
These shares will be held by the Employee Share Trust to meet future obligations to employees under the incentive plans upon
vesting of granted Performance and Share Appreciation Rights (refer Remuneration Report).
Dividends
Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which they are declared.
No dividends were declared or paid during the financial year to 30 June 2018 (2017: nil).

48

LogiCamms
Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2018
(continued)

7

Capital and reserves (continued)

(a) Share capital and reserves (continued)
Dividends (continued)
Declared and paid during the period

Final dividend

2018
$'000

2017
$'000

-

-

2018
$'000

2017
$'000

-

-

Franking credits

Franking credits available for subsequent reporting periods based on a tax rate of
30.0% (2017 - 30.0%)

The above amounts are calculated from the balance of the franking account as at the end of the reporting period, adjusted for
franking credits and debits that will arise from the settlement of liabilities or receivables for income tax and dividends after the end
of the year.

8

Risk

(a) Financial instruments
Non-derivative financial instruments
Non-derivative financial instruments comprise investments in equity securities, trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, and trade and other payables.
Non-derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value plus, for instruments not at fair value through profit or
loss, any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition non-derivative financial instruments are
measured as described below.
A financial instrument is recognised if the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets
are derecognised if the Group’s contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or if the Group transfers the
financial asset to another party without retaining control or substantially all risks and rewards of the asset. Regular way purchases
and sales of financial assets are accounted for at trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits itself to purchase or sale of the
asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised if the Group’s obligations specified in the contract expire or are discharged or
cancelled.
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and term deposits.
Other non-derivative financial instruments are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses.
(b) Financial risk management
Overview
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

•

Credit risk

•

Liquidity risk

•

Market risk
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Risk (continued)

(b) Financial risk management (continued)
Overview (continued)
This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, their objectives, policies and processes for
measuring and managing risk, and the management of capital.
Risk management framework
The Board of Directors have delegated to the Audit and Risk Committee the responsibility to exercise oversight of how
management monitors and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework. The Group’s risk management policies are
established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks
and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions
and the Group’s activities.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a contracting entity fails to meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract that will result in a financial loss to the Group. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities
(principally from customer receivables and financial guarantees granted to customers) and financing activities including deposits
with financial institutions.
Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of the Group’s financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk at the end of the reporting period was:
2018
$'000

2017
$'000

14,193

13,094

Sundry debtors and prepayments

1,424

544

Project work in progress

4,365

4,607

19,982

18,245

4,156

4,983

24,138

23,228

Trade receivables (net of provision for impairment)

Cash and cash equivalents

Credit risks related to trade receivables
The Group trades with recognised, creditworthy third parties such as government bodies, large contracting companies or
customers whom the Group has established trading history with. Customer credit risk is managed based on established policies,
procedures and controls relating to customer credit risk management. This includes:

•

for new customers - performing a creditworthiness assessment before credit terms are allowed and including the performance
of credit checks if required

•

prior to signing a large contract - credit worthiness is assessed as part of the process of submitting the bid and negotiating
terms and conditions

•

purchase limits - outside special terms required for large contracts, credit limits are established for each customer

In addition, the recoverability of receivable balances are regularly monitored as part of the monthly commercial and performance
reviews of each major project by senior management to ensure that the trade receivables and the carrying value of each project’s
work in progress is recoverable. In extreme cases, the Group may consider ceasing work until any aged outstanding receivables
or disputed amounts are paid or resolved.
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Risk (continued)

(b) Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Credit risks related to trade receivables (continued)
The Group has established an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and
other receivables.
The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables (excluding provision for doubtful debts) by geographic region
is as follows.
2018
$'000

2017
$'000

13,047

11,989

New Zealand

1,211

1,330

Other regions

-

156

14,258

13,475

Australia

Details of the Group’s most significant customer receivable balances at 30 June 2018 are shown in the following table. The most
significant single customer at 30 June 2018 is a large, government owned utility in the water infrastructure sector.
Carrying
amount
2018
$'000

% of trade
receivables
2018

Carrying
amount
2017
$'000

% of trade
receivables
2017

Most significant single customer

2,218

16%

1,611

12%

Top ten most significant customers

7,902

55%

7,455

55%

2018
$'000

2017
$'000

12,286

11,378

1,737

1,474

141

35

Past due 121 days to one year

54

462

More than one year

23

102

Retentions

17

24

14,258

13,475

Impairment losses
The aging of the Group’s trade receivables at the reporting date was:

Current assets
Not past due
Past due 0-30 days
Past due 31-120 days
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Risk (continued)

(b) Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Impairment losses (continued)
The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows:
2018
$'000

2017
$'000

381

170

Recoveries of previous year impairments

(2)

(54)

Impairment losses recognised

75

265

(389)

-

65

381

Balance at start of year

Amounts written off as non-recoverable
Balance at 30 June

The impairment loss at 30 June 2018 relates to specific invoices that the Group considers are at risk of being recovered. The
allowance account in respect of trade receivables is used to record impairment losses unless the Group is satisfied that no
recovery of the amount owing is possible. At that point the amount is considered irrecoverable and is written off against the
financial asset directly. The Group will continue to strongly pursue all debts provided for.
Credit risks related to financial instruments and cash deposits
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Group’s Finance team. Investments of surplus
funds are made with the Group’s bankers who have a credit rating by Standard & Poor’s rating agency of AA- or higher.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
The Group manages this risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it always has sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due,
under both normal and stressed conditions. The Group ensures that it has sufficient cash available on demand to meet expected
operational commitments in the short term including the servicing of financial obligations. The Group regularly forecasts cash
flows to assess future liquidity requirements with sufficient time to hold discussions with the Group’s bankers, if such discussions
are required.
The following are the contractual maturities of the Group’s liabilities, including estimated interest payments and excluding the
impact of netting agreements:
Carrying
amount
$'000

Contractual
cash flows
$'000

Less than 1
year
$'000

1-2
years
$'000

Trade payables

8,078

8,078

8,078

-

Borrowings (excluding finance leases)

5,775

5,792

5,792

-

13,853

13,870

13,870

-

7,107

7,107

7,107

-

Balance at 30 June 2018
Financial liabilities

Balance at 30 June 2017
Financial liabilities
Trade payables
Borrowings (excluding finance leases)

4,000

4,000

4,000

-

11,107

11,107

11,107

-
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Risk (continued)

(b) Financial risk management (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
Financing arrangements
The Group had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:
2018
$'000

2017
$'000

1,950

1,206

Floating rate
- Expiring within one year (multi option facility)

As at 30 June 2018 the Group had utilised a total of $9.05 million of the $11.0 million limit of its Multi Option Facility with NAB and
$0.2 million of the $0.5 million limit of its equipment finance facility. The facility limit of the Multi-Option facility can be allocated
between working capital and bank guarantees as required. On 31 August 2018, the facility limit was reduced to $10.5 million,
offset by an increase of $0.3 million in the equipment finance facility.
Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the
Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and
control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.
Currency risk
The Group has no significant exposure to currency risk.
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is managed by ensuring that total interest rate cover is well in excess of minimum bank covenant requirements,
to ensure the Group retains a high level of flexibility to absorb any adverse movements in interest rates.
Profile
At reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Group’s interest-bearing financial instruments was:
Carrying amount
2018
$'000

2017
$'000

4,156

4,983

(5,250)

(4,000)

(1,094)

983

705

-

Variable rate instruments
Financial assets
Financial liabilities

Fixed rate instruments
Financial liabilities

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
A change of 200 basis points in interest rates would have increased (decreased) equity and profit by the amounts shown below. A
sensitivity of 2% (2017: 2%) has been selected as this is considered reasonably possible. The Directors cannot nor do not seek to
predict movements in interest rates. These sensitivities are shown for illustrative purposes only.
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Risk (continued)

(b) Financial risk management (continued)
Profile (continued)
2018
$'000

2017
$'000

(22)

20

22

(20)

Effect on profit before tax increase/(decrease)
If interest rates were 2% higher (2017: 2%)
If interest rates were 2% lower (2017: 2%)
Effect on profit after tax increase/(decrease)
If interest rates were 2% higher (2017: 2%)
If interest rates were 2% lower (2017: 2%)

(15)

14

15

(14)

(15)

14

15

(14)

Effect on shareholders' equity increase/(decrease)
If interest rates were 2% higher (2017: 2%)
If interest rates were 2% lower (2017: 2%)

Fair value versus carrying amounts
The fair values and carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities shown in the balance sheet were not materially different at
30 June 2018 due to the short-term nature of these financial assets and liabilities.
The Group has no financial instruments carried at fair value and therefore has not disclosed the fair value hierarchy.
Capital management
The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain
future development of the business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital, which the Group defines as net
operating income divided by total shareholders’ equity. The Board of Directors also monitors the level of dividends to ordinary
shareholders.
The Company aims to provide a balance between share price / capital growth and income in the form of dividends. The ultimate
dividend paid will be determined by the board after consideration of general business and financial conditions, working capital
requirements, taxation position, and future capital expenditure requirements.
As at the balance date the Group had a multi-option working capital and bank guarantee facility of $11.0 million (refer to Note 5(g)
for details of this facility). Subsequent to the end of the financial year the limit of this facility was reduced to $10.5 million. The
Group monitors its working capital position on a monthly basis and forecasts its cash flows on a weekly basis to ensure that
adequate levels of liquidity are maintained at all times.
The Group also has in place an equipment lease facility with NAB of $0.5 million (currently utilised $0.2 million) used to fund IT
capital expenditure. Subsequent to the end of the financial year the limit of this facility was increased to $0.8 million.
(c) Impairment
Financial assets
A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it is impaired. A
financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on
the estimated future cash flows of that asset.
An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying
amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. An impairment
loss in respect of an available-for-sale financial asset is calculated by reference to its fair value.
Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial assets are
assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics.
All impairment losses are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.
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Risk (continued)

(c) Impairment (continued)
Non-financial assets
Testing for impairment
The Group tests non-financial assets for impairment:

•

At least annually for indefinite life intangible assets and goodwill; and

•

Where there is an indication that the asset may be impaired (which is assessed at least each reporting period); or

•

Where there is an indication that previously recognised impairment (on assets other than goodwill) may have changed.

If any such indication exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated, being the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell.
For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating
unit”). The Group considers that it has one cash generating unit for the purpose of impairment testing of goodwill.
Inputs to impairment calculations
The Value-In-Use calculation uses cash flow projections based on the Group’s corporate plans and business forecasts prepared
by management and approved by the Board. The corporate plans are developed annually and on the understanding that actual
outcomes may differ from the assumptions used. For these calculations, adjustments are incorporated for the relevant industry
metrics. In the circumstances that the Cash Generating Unit (“CGU”) is unable to achieve the forecast growth in earnings, there is
a risk that the carrying value of the CGU would exceed its recoverable amount.
Cash flow projections over the five year period, which are based on Group estimates, take into consideration historical
performance as well as expected long term operating conditions. Growth rates do not materially exceed the consensus forecasts
of the long term average growth rate for the market sector in which the CGU operates.
The pre-tax discount rates are based on the weighted average cost of capital determined by prevailing or benchmarked market
inputs, risk adjusted where necessary, and other assumptions are determined with reference to external sources of information
and use consistent, conservative estimates for variables such as terminal cash flow multiples. Increases in discount rates or
changes in other key assumptions, such as operating conditions or financial performance, may cause the recoverable amounts to
fall below carrying values.
EBITDA and projected margins are based on actual performance in prior years adjusted for expected efficiency improvements,
volume increases and overhead cost reductions.
Impairment charge
The Group has conducted an assessment of the carrying value of its net assets and has determined that no impairment charge is
required in FY18 (2017: $11.0 million).
There were a number of factors that indicated a potential impairment of goodwill as at 30 June 2018, including:

•

The Group’s market capitalisation remains below the level of its net asset value

•

Financial performance across the business in the twelve months to 30 June 2018 was lower than expected
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Risk (continued)

(c) Impairment (continued)
Non-financial assets (continued)
Impairment calculations
Assets are impaired if their carrying value exceeds their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is
determined as the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal or Value-In-Use.
The recoverable amount of the goodwill is based on a Value-In-Use calculation with respect to the CGU and was determined by
applying a five year net present value calculation of projected cash flows and a terminal value at the end of the fifth year. The
calculation of Value-In-Use was determined having regard to the following key assumptions:

•

A pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flows of 16.64% (2017: 16.9%)

•

Expected future profits for the first year based on the Board approved budget for FY19

•

EBITDA margins in the mid-high single digits

•

Future nominal revenue growth of 10%, 10%, 7.5% and 7.5% in years two to five (2017: 15%, 12%, 10% and 10% in years
two to five respectively)

•

After the fifth year a terminal value was applied using a growth rate of 2.0% (2017: 2.5%)

The recoverable value of the CGU is particularly sensitive to changes in the level of EBITDA over the five year forecast period,
and the forecast long term EBITDA that drives terminal value.
Sensitivity to changes in assumptions
Management recognises that there are various reasons the estimates used in these assumptions may vary. There are possible
changes in key assumptions that could cause the carrying value of the CGU to exceed its recoverable amount. The changes
required to each of the key assumptions (assuming all other assumptions remain the same) to cause the carrying value of the
CGU to exceed its recoverable amount are set out in the table below:

9

Assumption

Possible change considered

EBITDA Margin

Reduction of 1.45%

Discount rate

Increase of 3.8%

Corporate and Group

(a) Group entities
Parent and ultimate controlling entity
The Group’s principal subsidiaries at 30 June 2018 are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital consisting
solely of ordinary shares that are held directly by the Group, and the proportion of ownership interests held equals the voting
rights held by the Group. The country of incorporation or registration is also their principal place of business.
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Corporate and Group (continued)

(a) Group entities (continued)
Country of

Ownership interest

incorporation

2018
%

2017
%

LogiCamms Holdings Pty Ltd

Australia

100

100

LogiCamms (WA) Pty Ltd

Australia

100

100

LogiCamms West Pty Ltd (formerly LogiCamms Consultants Pty Ltd)
as trustee for LogiCamms Consultants Trust

Australia

100

100

LogiCamms (PNG) Pty Ltd

Australia

100

100

Competency Training Pty Ltd

Australia

100

100

LogiCamms Australia Pty Ltd

Australia

100

100

LogiCamms (CGH) Pty Ltd

Australia

100

100

LogiCamms (Central) Pty Ltd

Australia

100

100

LogiCamms Shared Services Pty Ltd

Australia

100

100

LogiCamms Consulting Pty Ltd

Australia

100

100

Petromod Pty Ltd

Australia

100

100

LogiCamms New Zealand Limited (formerly Independent Technology Limited)

New Zealand

100

100

Independent Technology Holdings Limited

New Zealand

100

100

ITL Engineering New Zealand Limited

New Zealand

100

100

ITL Limited

New Zealand

100

100

ITL Engineering Australia Pty Ltd

New Zealand

100

100

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct
the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.
Parent entity disclosures
2018
$'000

2017
$'000

1,223

(24,165)

5,634

6,134

Total assets

50,279

50,126

Current liabilities

(7,944)

(7,231)

(13,990)

(12,282)

36,289

37,844

68,943

68,943

5,621

2,371

(38,275)

(33,470)

36,289

37,844

Result of the parent entity
Profit/(loss) and comprehensive income for the year
Financial position of parent entity at year end
Current assets

Total liabilities
Net assets
Total equity of the parent entity comprising of
Share capital
Reserves
Accumulated losses

57

LogiCamms
Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2018
(continued)

9

Corporate and Group (continued)

(a) Group entities (continued)
Parent entity contingencies
2018
$'000

2017
$'000

-

-

(3,850)

(3,850)

GST liabilities of other entities within the GST Group
Tax (assets)/liabilities of other entities within the Tax Consolidated Group

(b) Equity accounted investees (joint venture)
The Group’s equity accounted investee, the LogiCamms-Electro80 joint venture, was shut down during the financial year.
Country of
incorporation

Ownership 2018
%

2017
%

-

50

Name of entity
LogiCamms-Electro80 joint venture

Australia

LogiCamms-Electro80 joint venture
30 June
2018
$'000

30 June
2017
$'000

Current assets

-

1

Non-current assets

-

-

Total assets

-

1

Current liabilities

-

1

Non-current liabilities

-

-

Total liabilities

-

1

Net assets

-

1

Group's share of net assets

-

-

Revenues

-

2

Expenses

-

(7)

Loss

-

(5)

Group's share of loss at 50%

-

(3)

This equity accounted investee effectively ceased trading in the prior financial year with minimal wind up costs being accounted
for in the 2017 financial year. As such, during the year the Group revalued its investment in the LogiCamms-Electro 80 JV to
reflect the current trading position of the equity accounted investee. The Group received no dividends and returns of capital
(2017: nil) during the year.

58

LogiCamms
Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2018
(continued)

9

Corporate and Group (continued)

(b) Equity accounted investees (joint venture)
Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are
initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements in other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from associates and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including any
other unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.
Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
(c) Related parties
Key Management Personnel compensation
The Key Management Personnel compensation included in ‘Personnel expenses’ (see Note 4(d)) is as follows:
2018
$

2017
$

1,436,968

1,713,809

Post-employment benefits

72,116

114,506

Non-monetary benefits

15,145

19,210

Share-based payments

47,245

104,779

366,741

260,192

1,938,215

2,212,496

Short-term employee benefits

Termination benefits

Individual Directors and executives compensation disclosures
Information regarding individual Directors' and executives' compensation and some equity instruments disclosures as required by
Corporations Regulations 2M.3.03 are provided in the Remuneration Report section of the Directors’ Report. Apart from the
details disclosed in this note, no Director has entered into a material contract with the Group since the end of the previous
financial year and there were no material contracts involving Directors’ interests existing at year-end.
Key Management Personnel and their related parties
No loans were made to Key Management Personnel and their related parties during the year. The Group has not advanced loans
to key management persons or their related parties.
16,666 ordinary shares were provided to Key Management Personnel during the reporting period upon exercise of rights granted
as compensation in prior periods (2017: 456,411).
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Corporate and Group (continued)

(b) Related parties (continued)
Key Management Personnel and their related parties (continued)
The movement during the reporting year in the number of ordinary shares in the Company held, directly, indirectly or beneficially,
by Key Management Personnel is detailed in the Remuneration Report.
The terms and conditions of these transactions with management persons and their related parties were no more favourable than
those available, or which might reasonably be expected to be available, on similar transactions to non-director related entities on
an arm’s length basis.
Non-Key Management Personnel disclosures
There were no transactions with non-Key Management Personnel during the year that require disclosure.
Acquisition of shares from related parties
There were no acquisitions of shares from related parties in the 2018 financial year (2017: nil).
Subsidiaries
There is a related party relationship between the parent, LogiCamms Limited, and each of its subsidiaries listed in Note 9(a).

10 Share-based payments
Two separate tranches of performance rights were in effect during the 2018 financial year. The first issued on 28 September 2016
and the second issued on 25 October 2017.
The terms and conditions of the Rights are as follows:
Tranche: 28 September 2016
The performance period for rights issued 28 September 2016 under the 2016 LTI awards is the year from 1 July 2015 to 30 June
2016. The Performance Rights vest into shares for no further consideration on a 1 for 1 basis subject to tenure at the time of
vesting.
The LTI dollar value determined for each executive was calculated based on a percentage of the executive’s annual fixed
remuneration for the year ended 30 June 2016 and ranges from 30% to 50%. The number of Performance Rights awarded to
each executive was calculated by reference to the fair value of each Performance Right at 30 June on the financial year to which
the award relates.
Tranche: 25 October 2017
The terms of the Performance Rights issued Flora Furness on 25 October 2017 required that the recipient must remain in the
continuous employment of the Company until the vesting date. These Rights have no exercise price and are to be settled by
physical delivery of shares at a conversion ratio of 1:1.
General terms
The exercise price for these Performance Rights is nil. Performance Rights carry no voting or dividend entitlements.
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10 Share-based payments (continued)
Long Term Incentive Plan
The movement in the share rights for the year is as follows:
Performance Rights

Outstanding at
1 July 2017

Issued on 28 September 2016
Issued on 25 October 2017

Granted

Forfeited or
Cancelled

Vested

Outstanding at
30 June 2018

289,743

-

(134,615)

(16,666)

138,462

-

200,000

-

-

200,000

289,743

200,000

(134,615)

(16,666)

338,462

Employee expenses relating to equity settled share-based payments
2018
$'000

2017
$'000

Performance rights

47

129

Total expense recognised as employee costs

47

129

Share-based payment transactions
The grant-date fair value of options, Performance Rights or Share Appreciation Rights granted to employees is recognised as an
employee expense over the contractual life of the option or right that the employees become unconditionally entitled to the
awards. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of awards for which the related service and nonmarket performance conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based on
the number of awards that meet the related service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date. For share-based
payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant-date fair value of the share-based payment is measured to reflect such
conditions and there is no true-up for differences between expected and actual outcomes.

11 Unrecognised items
(a) Subsequent events
Extension of finance facilities
Subsequent to the end of the financial year, the NAB Multi-Option facility was amended, with the limit formally reduced from $11.0
million to $10.5 million (split $6.0 million working capital and $4.5 million bank guarantee facility) and the expiry date extended
until 30 September 2019. Financial covenants remain the same but several additional requirements were added:
•

The Company is to make quarterly repayment into a NAB term deposit 45 days after each quarter end, commencing
February 2019, based on the greater of a fixed payment schedule or a percentage of adjusted EBITDA (a defined term
in the agreement).

•

Capital expenditure is limited to $1.5 million.

•

The Company must report to NAB the results of a strategic review of its operations and funding options by 2 November
2018.

•

By 30 November 2018 the Company must provide to NAB evidence of the Board’s approval to commence a course of
action to execute one of its strategic funding options.

•

By 31 January 2019 the Company must provide to NAB evidence of the commencement of implementation of one of the
strategic options along with monthly reporting of the progress of its strategy.

There are no other material events subsequent to balance date that management is aware of that require disclosure.
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(b) Operating leases (continued)
2018
$'000

2017
$'000

Less than one year

3,779

4,363

Between one and five years

5,136

6,589

Leases as lessee
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows:

More than five years

-

391

8,915

11,343

The Group leases properties in Brisbane, Perth, Melbourne and Adelaide as well as in several regional locations and in New
Zealand. The leases typically run for a period of 12 months to 10 years, with options to renew. Most leases increase annually to
reflect market rentals or movement in the consumer price index. During the year ended 30 June 2016 $4.2 million was recognised
as an expense in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income in respect of onerous premises
leases. Following successful negotiations to sublet part of the lease for the Group's Perth office, an amount of $0.34 million was
derecognised and is presented separately on the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for
the year ended 30 June 2018 (2017: $0.7 million was derecognised in respect of the Group’s Brisbane office).
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1. In the opinion of the Directors of LogiCamms Ltd ('the Company'):
(a)

the consolidated financial statements and notes set out on pages 23 to 63, and the Remuneration report in
the Directors' report, set out on pages 12 to 19, are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i)

giving a true and fair view of the Group's financial position as at 30 June 2018 and of its performance for
the financial period ended on that date, and

(ii)

complying with Australian Accounting Standards, the Corporations Regulations 2001;

(b)

the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in note 2(a);

(c)

there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they
become due and payable.

2. The Directors have been given the declarations required by section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 from the Interim Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer for the financial year ended 30 June 2018.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

Peter Watson
Chairman

Brisbane
31 August 2018
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Independent auditor’s report
To the members of LogiCamms Limited

Report on the audit of the financial report
Our opinion
In our opinion:
The accompanying financial report of LogiCamms Limited (the Company) and its controlled entities
(together the Group) is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
(a) giving a true and fair view of the Group's financial position as at 30 June 2018 and of its
financial performance for the year then ended
(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.
What we have audited
The Group financial report comprises:


the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018



the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended



the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended



the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then
ended



the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant
accounting policies



the directors’ declaration.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
report section of our report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
Independence
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical
Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant
to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, ABN 52 780 433 757
480 Queen Street, BRISBANE QLD 4000, GPO Box 150, BRISBANE QLD 4001
T: +61 7 3257 5000, F: +61 7 3257 5999, www.pwc.com.au
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.
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Our audit approach
An audit is designed to provide reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from
material misstatement. Misstatements may arise due to fraud or error. They are considered material if
individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of the financial report.
We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an
opinion on the financial report as a whole, taking into account the geographic and management
structure of the Group, its accounting processes and controls and the industry in which it operates.

Materiality




For the purpose of our audit
we used overall Group
materiality of $0.8 million,
which represents
approximately 1% of the
Group’s revenue.
We applied this threshold,
together with qualitative
considerations, to determine
the scope of our audit and the
nature, timing and extent of
our audit procedures and to
evaluate the effect of
misstatements on the
financial report as a whole.



We chose Group revenue
because, in our view, it is a
benchmark against which the
performance of the Group is
commonly measured.



We utilised a 1% threshold
based on our professional
judgement, noting it is within
the range of commonly
acceptable thresholds.

Audit scope


Our audit focused on where
the Group made subjective
judgements; for example,
significant accounting
estimates involving
assumptions and inherently
uncertain future events.



The accounting processes are
structured around a Group
finance function located in
Brisbane. Our audit
procedures were mostly
performed at the head office.



Our team included the use of
PwC valuation experts.

Key audit matters


Amongst other relevant topics,
we communicated the
following key audit matters to
the Audit and Risk Committee:




Basis of preparation of the
financial report.
 Recoverability of goodwill.
 Contract management:
Revenue recognition,
accrued work in progress,
and recoverability of
receivables
These are further described in
the Key audit matters section of
our report.
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Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial report for the current period. The key audit matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial report as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. Further, any commentary on the outcomes of a
particular audit procedure is made in that context.
Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Basis of preparation of the financial report.

In assessing the appropriateness of the Group’s
basis of preparation for the financial report, we
performed the following audit procedures,
amongst others:

Refer to note 2

 As described in Note 2 to the financial report,
the financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis, which
contemplates that the Group will continue to
meet its commitments, realise its assets and
settle its liabilities in the normal course of
business.
 Assessing the appropriateness of the Group’s
going concern basis of preparation for the
financial report was a key audit matter due to
its importance to the presentation of the
financial report and the level of judgment
involved in the Group forecasting future cash
flows and available financing facilities for a
period of at least 12 months from the date of
the financial report (the cash flow forecasts).

 Evaluated the appropriateness of the Group's
assessment as to their ability to continue as a
going concern, including; whether the level
of analysis is appropriate given the nature of
the Group; checking that the period covered
is at least 12 months from the date of the
auditor’s report; and that relevant
information of which the auditor is aware as
a result of the audit has been considered.
 Enquired of management and the board of
directors as to its knowledge of events or
conditions that may cast doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going
concern.
 Assessed whether the Group’s cash flow
forecasts from operations, combined with
available financing facilities, were adequate
for the Group to be able to pay its expected
debts as they fall due for the 12 months
forecast period.
 To assess the cash flow forecast, we evaluated
the reliability of the underlying data and
considered the support for assumptions in
the Group’s cash flow forecasts.
 Performed a sensitivity analysis by varying
key assumptions in the cash flow forecasts, to
understand the headroom provided by the
amended financing facilities in the event that
actual performance varies from that assumed
in the Group’s forecasts.
 Agreed the Group’s committed and available
financing facilities impacting the going
concern assessment to supporting
agreements.
 Obtained an understanding from
management and the Board of Directors
regarding their plans for future action and
the feasibility of these plans, including the
availability of alternative sources of funds.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Evaluated whether the Basis of Preparation
disclosures in Note 2 provide adequate
disclosures about these events and conditions,
in view of the requirements of Australian
Accounting Standards
Recoverability of goodwill.
Refer to note 6b and 8c





Recoverability of goodwill was a key audit
matter due to the material nature of the
goodwill balance, and because the Group’s
assessment of the ‘value in use’ (VIU) of the
Cash Generating Unit (CGU) involves
judgements about the future results of the
business and the discount rates applied to
future cash flow forecasts.
The Group performed an impairment
assessment over the goodwill balance by
calculating VIU for the CGU using a
discounted cash flow model (model). The
model used cash flow data, which contains
significant judgements relating to:
(a) cash flow projections based on the
Group’s budget and forecasts which
includes assumptions for revenue
growth, and projected Earnings before
Interest, Taxation, Depreciation and
Amortisation (EBITDA) margins; and
(b) pre-tax discount rates based on
benchmarked market inputs, risk
adjusted where considered necessary.

Based on the impairment assessment performed
for the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group
determined that no impairment was required.

We performed the following audit procedures,
amongst others:










Considered if estimating VIU was
the best basis upon which to assess
value of the CGU.
Compared forecast cash flows used
in the model to budgets and
business plans formally approved by
the Board.
Considered whether the cash flows
in the model were reasonable by
comparing assumptions such as
revenue growth, EBITDA margins
and discount rates to industry
metrics developed independently by
PwC valuation experts.
Performed sensitivity analysis on
key assumptions in the model
including revenue growth, discount
rates and EBITDA over the 5 year
forecast period.
Tested the mathematical accuracy
of the model’s calculations.

Evaluated the adequacy of the disclosures made
in notes 6(b) and 8(c) of the financial report,
including those regarding the key assumptions
in the valuation and sensitivities to changes in
such assumptions, in light of the requirements
of Australian Accounting Standards.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Contract management: Revenue recognition,
accrued work in progress, and recoverability
of receivables

We performed the following audit procedures
for the revenue streams, amongst others;


Refer to notes 4a and 5b

 The Group enters into various types of
contracts, including fixed price contracts,
cost reimbursable contracts, capped cost
reimbursable contracts and mixed contracts.
For certain types of contracts, including fixed
price contracts, revenue is recognised
depending on the stage of completion of
those services.
 Certain contracts include risk, contingency
and warranty terms and the Group uses
judgement in determining the appropriate
revenue to recognise in consideration of
these terms.
 The Group is exposed to credit risks from
transacting on credit terms with its
customers through unbilled work in progress
and outstanding receivables.
 This area was a key audit matter because of
the judgement required in recognising
revenue, work in progress and receivables
from these types of contracts.












Developed an understanding of and
evaluated the Company’s contract
establishment and project management
process.
For a sample of transactions (for each type
of service), obtained the relevant contracts
and compared the revenue and accrued
work in progress recognised with the
contract terms.
Obtained a sample of significant contracts to
identify the potential risk factors including
warranty claims arrangements, penalty and
incentive clauses, and contingent liabilities.
For a sample of invoices, agreed the sale
amount to the cash receipt in the relevant
bank statement.
Recalculated the stage of completion for a
sample of contracts and projects and
compared this to the percentage used by the
Group when recognising revenue.
Assessed the aging of accrued revenue, work
in progress and receivables balances to
identify areas of higher risk, for example
long aged items or disputed amounts, and
assessed on a sample basis whether there
was any impact on revenue, work in
progress or receivables recognised.
Assessed the reliability of receivables aging
reports through testing the aging of a
sample of items in the report.

68

Other information
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Group's annual report for the year ended 30 June 2018, but does not
include the financial report and our auditor’s report thereon. Prior to the date of this auditor's report,
the other information we obtained included the Director’s report. We expect the remaining other
information to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.
Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and we do not and will not
express an opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial report or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date
of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
When we read the other information not yet received as identified above, if we conclude that there is a
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to the directors and use
our professional judgement to determine the appropriate action to take.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial report
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a
true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and Corporations Act 2001
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial report.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board website at:
http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar1.pdf. This description forms part of our
auditor's report.
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Report on the remuneration report
Our opinion on the remuneration report
We have audited the remuneration report included in pages 12 to 19 of the directors’ report for the
year ended 30 June 2018.
In our opinion, the remuneration report of LogiCamms Limited for the year ended 30 June 2018
complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

Responsibilities
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the
remuneration report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the remuneration report, based on our audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Michael Shewan
Partner

Brisbane
31 August 2018
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Auditor’s Independence Declaration
As lead auditor for the audit of LogiCamms Limited for the year ended 30 June 2018, I
declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been:
(a)

no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act
2001 in relation to the audit; and

(b)

no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the
audit.

This declaration is in respect of LogiCamms Limited and the entities it controlled during the
period.

Michael Shewan
Partner
PricewaterhouseCoopers

Brisbane
31 August 2018

PricewaterhouseCoopers, ABN 52 780 433 757
480 Queen Street, BRISBANE QLD 4000, GPO Box 150, BRISBANE QLD 4001
T: +61 7 3257 5000, F: +61 7 3257 5999, www.pwc.com.au
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.
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